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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2010.

Against the background of lackluster economic conditions preceded by the global financial
crisis and economic downturn, our Group has delivered impressive results for the 2010
Financial Year. We delivered on our financial commitments and continued to pursue new long-
term growth opportunities while reducing costs. The Group’s ability to lead such a significant
performance, particularly in challenging times, is a testament to its capabilities and excellence.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The global economy was overshadowed by continued instability and uncertainty in the
beginning of 2009, when we started the financial year under review. Amidst intensified liquidity
issues and credit crunch, we saw stabilisation programs which included drastic macroeconomic
measures together with massive easing policies implemented by governments around the
world. Although by mid 2009, the global economy started to pull out of the recession and
there were tentative signs of gradual stabilisation and improvements, a sustained recovery was
still very much in question. Against this economic backdrop, the Group managed to strengthen
its core competencies and achieved growths in revenue and sales volume, thanks to the
Group's sound financial position and operational efficiency in times of difficulties.

I 'am delighted to inform you that during the financial year under review, the Group’s gross
profit for the year and the net profit attributable to equity holders amounted to HK$1,221.8
million and HK$803.2 million respectively. Earnings per share was HK$0.56, compared to
HK$0.26 in the previous financial year representing an increase of |15.4%.

During the 2010 Financial Year, our overall capacity increased slightly over 10% year-on-year.
Sales volume of the Group reached 195.8 million pounds, a growth of 24.6% compared to
[57.2 million pounds in the previous year.

The Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend of HKI7 cents per share. Together with
an interim dividend of HKI3 cents per share paid on 8 January 2010 and a special dividend of
HK 22 cents per share paid on 25 February 2010, the total dividends for the financial year will
be HK52 cents per share.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In the 2010 Financial Year, we continued to see the textile industry going through waves of
consolidation, as industry participants faced stiff competition in a still unfavorable economic
environment. With the Group’s sound financial position, we were able to leverage on our core
competency to achieve substantial growth.

As the economic climate of US and EU markets remained sluggish, we continued the process
of geographic diversification by focusing on market expansion opportunities in Japan and
China, while maintaining strong relationships with our existing customers. Growth in sales
volume to the Japanese market was very satisfactory. On China's domestic market front, the
Group is also making good progress through our active pursuit in sales expansion and market
penetration. We will continue to increase our efforts to tap into the fast-growing Chinese
market.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Contd)

We are making satisfactory progress in the Bangladesh joint venture. The land for our
integrated fabric and garment factory was acquired and the design of the factory is underway.
However, to speed up our learning curve, the joint venture leased an industrial building and
started the garment operation in early 2010. Despite the small operating scale, the setup
enables us an early start for familiarising the local business practice and training our workers.

In our constant effort to curtail high operating cost, the Group successfully adopted efficient
working capital management and stringent cost containment measures during the year. We
made headway on improving our operational efficiency through technological innovations and
regular upgrades of equipment in the existing production plants.

Underlying all of our achievements in the 2010 Financial Year was also our determined
commitment to quality of the products and the environment. We continued to adhere to the
highest quality and standards across all of our operating units and believe these are essential
to delivering long-term shareholder value. Our achievements in integrating environment best
practices in the manufacturing process are widely recognised by leading environment
accreditation organisations. In 2009, the Panyu plant was accredited Environmentally
Trustworthy Enterprise — Green Label RIR#MERE — 4 BFETR) by Guangdong
Environmental Protection Bureau (EHREIREIRER) .The Group was also awarded Hang
Seng Pearl River Delta Environmental Awards (B4 %k = BIRIR#E) as well as Hang Seng
Pearl River Delta Environmental Category Awards - Air Emissions and Noise Abatement (18
ER=ARREE R -BEREMRERZER) jointly issued by the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries (&4 T4 &) and Hang Seng Bank in 2009, recognising its efforts in
taking steps to enhance its environmental contributions. We are truly honored to receive
these awards.

OUTLOOK

Let me now share with you the outlook for the coming year. It is anticipated that the Group's
business will benefit by the economic growth momentum of China and the gradual recovery
of the international economy in the coming vear. | would, however, like to add a note of
cautiousness though, on the rise of commodity prices and production costs, RMB appreciation
and the uncertainty of a long-term stable and vibrant economic growth. All this guard us
against any over-optimism.

Indeed, the prevailing tough operating environment will continue to exert pressures on
industry participants and poised for further industry consolidation. In view of this, the Group
will continue to enhance its competitive edges to grasp the opportunities arising from this
challenge. We will also strive to implement further stringent cost control measures and
streamline existing operations and structures to further enhance operational efficiency and
profit margin.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my gratitude to our loyal customers,
business partners and suppliers for their continuing commitment to the Group.

To my fellow colleagues on the Board, | would like to express my gratitude for your teamwork
and support.

The Group's performance is also reflective of the hard work of our staff and | would like to
convey my thanks to our employees for their achievement in delivering the excellent

performance.

Last but not least, to our shareholders, | am grateful for your loyal support and confidence in
the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 9 July 2010
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

As we started the 2010 Financial Year, the world was full of uncertainty and the prospects for
a significant recovery were still in doubt. In this setting, we sharpened our focus on market
expansion opportunities in Japan and China markets, while further expanding the Group's
production capacities carefully. Leveraging our competitive edges and strong financial position,
we consolidated our position in the market and improved our operational efficiency in the
financial year under review. These concurrent and cohesive efforts led the Group to achieve a
satisfactory performance in terms of revenue and net profits in one of the most challenging
periods of the world economy.

For the year under review, the Group’s revenue increased 24.3% to HK$5,883.4 million, (2009:
HK$4,734.8 million), thanks to the increased production capacity and high utilisation rate.
Despite the difficult environment, total sales volume increased by 24.6% to 195.8 million
pounds (2009: 157.2 million pounds) and average selling price maintained at HK$30.! per
pound (2009: HK$30.1 per pound) .

Operating profit reached HK$969.1 million (2009: HK$426.1 million) and the gross profit
stood at HK$1,221.8 million (2009: HK$687.0 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
127.4% and 77.8% respectively.

For the year under review, net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
HK$803.2 million, which represents an outstanding increase of |13.3% over the previous year
of HK$376.5 million. Net profit margin rose to 13.7% (2009: 8.0%). Earnings per share was
HK$0.56 (2009: HK$0.26).

The Group's distribution and selling expenses decreased 9.5% from HK$149.9 million in the
previous year to HK$135.7 million. The decrease is mainly due to the reduction in customer’s
claims during the 2010 Financial Year.

General and administrative expenses were HK$184.2 million (2009: HK$170.6 million),
representing an increase of 8.0% from last year. As a percentage of total revenue, general and
administrative expenses dropped from 3.6% to 3.1% during the 2010 Financial Year. The Group
maintained an efficient cost structure during the year and will continue to manage its cost in a
proactive manner.

Customers, Production Plants and Expansion Strategy

During the year under review, the US and EU markets showed some tentative signs of
stablisation and improvement, but the overall consumer demand is still weak. Together with the
credit crunch and the continued tightening of environmental regulations by the Chinese
government, a wave of industry consolidation benefits stronger players.

The Group was successful in confronting the challenges by sharpening its competitive edge.
Leveraging on its core competencies, including its sound financial standing, efficient production
facilities, and strong capability to produce value-added products, the Group has recalibrated
itself and is now on a much stronger and solid footing.

Our strong relationship with a wide portfolio of key brand owners, including Maidenform,
Marks & Spencer, Triumph, UNIQLO, VF Intimates and Victoria's Secret, enables the Group to
continue to grow during testing times. The Group'’s top five customers and brand owners
contributed approximately 47.6% and 50.9% to our total revenue versus 39.5% and 41.1% of
last year.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

In line with the Group's growth strategy and continued effort to further establish its global
market presence, a well-executed market expansion plan helped us to further consolidate our
position in Japan and China.

The manufacturing facility of the Bangladesh joint venture is progressing satisfactorily. The land
for our integrated fabric and garment factory was acquired and the design of the factory is
underway. At the same time, the joint venture leased an industrial building and started the
garment operation early this year. Despite the small operating scale, the setup enables us an
early start for familiarising the local business practice and training our workers. The joint
venture will help the Group to take full advantage of Bangladesh’s access to European markets
and Japan with no tariffs and quotas barriers, its cost effective production capacity and low
operating costs. The cornerstone was laid for growth in the future.

The Group also continued to improve its operational efficiency through innovative
technological solutions and regular upgrades of equipment in the existing production plants in
Sri Lanka and Panyu, China. The program significantly helped to optimise production capacity,
enhance operational efficiency and lower production cost, while enabling considerable
flexibility with opportunities for growth.

Our Group is committed to sustainability and corporate social responsibility. The Group also
has developed and implemented environmentally compatible technologies and techniques to
minimise environmental footprint in the manufacturing processes. The safety of employees and
the local population is also our priority concern. The Group’s environmental efforts are widely
recognised by leading environment accreditation organisations. In 2009, the Panyu plant was
accredited Environmentally Trustworthy Enterprise — Green Label (BRIR 5 {5 b 3% — & 8 1%
~) by Guangdong Environmental Protection Bureau (R & RIE/R#EF) and received the
Cleaner Production Corporation (/524 E &%) recognition from the Economic and Trade
Commission of Guangdong Province (ER B HE 5% 8&) and Guangdong Bureau of
Science and Technology (B & RIZ K ITE). The Group was also awarded Hang Seng Pearl
River Delta Environmental Awards (B4 %k = AIRIR ) as well as Hang Seng Pearl River
Delta Environmental Category Awards - Air Emissions and Noise Abatement (1B 2k = AR
RIEE - ERIEB KR EER) jointly issued by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries
(BATHEE) and Hang Seng Bank in 2009, recognising its efforts in taking steps to
enhance its environmental contributions.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWED

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Information

As at 31 March 2010, our bank and cash balances and time deposits totaled HK$689.4 million
(2009: HK$1,431.7 million), including HK$313.1 million, the equivalent of HK$223.2 million in
US$, the equivalent of HK$151.0 million in Renminbi and the equivalent of HK$2.1 million in
other currencies. The bank and cash balances and time deposits are to finance the Group’s
working capital and capital expenditure plans. The loans are mostly short-term, principally
ranging from 2 weeks to 3 months, and are mainly denominated in US dollars.

For the 2010 Financial Year, the Group's total assets amounted to HK$4,656.3 million (2009:
HK$4,385.5 million), representing an increase of 6.2%. Non-current assets and current assets
were HK$1,738.7 million and HK$2,917.6 million respectively. The above assets were financed
by current liabilities of HK$1,318.7 million, non-current liabilities of HK$17.7 million, minority
interests of HK$65.7 million and equity attributable to shareholders of HK$3,254.2 million.The
current ratio (which is calculated on the basis of current assets over current liabilities) was 2.2
(2009: 2.6). The gearing ratio, being the ratio of total debts (including current and non-current
borrowings and finance lease obligations) to total capital, was 2% (2009: 13%). The reduction in
gearing was attributable mainly to a reduction in borrowings. As at 31 March 2010, the Group
was in a net cash position of HK$615.0 million (31 March 2009: HK$1,026.1 million).

The Group adopted measures and fine-tuned its capital expenditure in response to the
market demand. During the year under review, total capital expenditure rose 19.1% to
HK$252.3 million (2009: HK$211.8 million), which was mainly used to purchase plant and
machinery, and on construction projects of the Panyu Plant and others.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the US dollar and Renminbi. The Group manages its foreign exchange
risks by performing regular review and monitoring its foreign exchange exposure. The Group
will hedge against the exposure and reduce the risk involved as appropriate.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2010, the Group's bank loans of HK$24.6 million (2009: HK$70.9 million)
were secured by certain property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of HK$86.4
million (2009: HK$92.9 million) and inventories with net realisable value of HK$77.6 million
(2009: HK$78.0 million).
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Contd)

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had a total of 8,064 full-time employees (2009: 7,373), 6,781
of whom were based in China, |,159 in Sri Lanka, |13 in Hong Kong and || in other regions.
There is no significant change in the Group's remuneration policy. The Group's remuneration
package for its employees includes salary, bonuses, allowances and retirement benefits, based
on employee’s performance, skills and knowledge. The Group will continue to provide regular
training and competitive remuneration packages to its staff. The Group also provides additional
benefits to its employees, such as subsidised accommodation and meals for workers at the
production facilities, and accident and medical insurance.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme. Pursuant to the scheme, the Company
granted options to eligible employees. The amortised fair value of share options granted, which
totaled approximately HK$6.8 million was charged to the income statement for the 2010
Financial Year (2009: HK$8.9 million).

Dividends

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HK17 cents (2009: HK12 cents) per share for
the 2010 Financial Year. Together with an interim dividend of HKI3 cents (2009: HK3 cents)
per share and the special dividend of HK22 cents (2009: Nil) per share, the total dividend for
the 2010 Financial Year amounts to HK52 cents (2009: HKI5 cents) per share. The final
dividend, if approved by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, will be paid in September
2010.

Outlook and Prospect

To firmly enhance our ability to handle future growth, we initiated tighter inventory
management and control in the 2010 Financial Year. The management and processes of
purchases, production, inventory control and logistics were regularly evaluated. The result
proved to be beneficial, as the Group's overall production efficiency improved.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to assess the economic environment and will maintain
a cautiously optimistic approach as overall consumer demand is yet to fully recover.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EENSREEASHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WAN Wai Loi, aged 60, is an executive Director and Chairman and a founder of our
Group. Mr Wan is responsible for production of the products and the formulation of the
overall corporate direction and business strategies of the Group. Mr.Wan has over 37 years of
experience in the textile industry. He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in Chemical
Engineering from Taiwan National Cheng Kung University. Mr. Wan joined the Group in 1997
and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group.

Mr. TSANG Kang Po, aged 59, is an executive Director and the Vice Chairman and a founder
of our Group. Mr. Tsang is responsible for sales and marketing and the formulation of the
overall corporate direction and business strategies for the Group. Mr. Tsang has over 31 years
of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Tsang obtained a MBA degree from The Open
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Science in Business Economics from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr.Tsang joined the Group in 1997 and was appointed as a Director
in 2004. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. LAM Wing Tak, aged 59, is an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of our
Company. Mr. Lam is responsible for sales and marketing and the formulation of the overall
corporate direction and business strategies for the Group. Mr. Lam has over 35 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. Lam obtained a MBA degree from The University of
Macau and a Bachelor of Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Lam is a member of Board of Trustee of New Asia College, The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Mr: Lam joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. LAM King Man, aged 54, is an executive Director. Dr. Lam is responsible for overseeing
manufacturing, research and development. Dr. Lam has over 28 years of experience in the
textile, garment, dyeing and finishing industry. Dr. Lam obtained a Ph.D. degree from the
Postgraduate School of Colour Chemistry and Colour Technology at the University of
Bradford, United Kingdom and a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry from Hong Kong
Polytechnic. He is a Chartered Colourist and a Fellow of The Society of Dyers and Colourists,
United Kingdom. Dr. Lam joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as a Director in 2004.
He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. LAM Hing Chau, Leon, aged 52, is an executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences from
the University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, CPA Australia, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lam also holds Master's degrees
in Business Administration, Information Systems, Applied Finance and Electronic Commerce.
Prior to joining the Group, he was the executive director, vice president and chief financial
officer of CK Life Sciences Int'l (Holdings) Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Lam joined the Group in 2005 and was appointed as a Director in 2009 and company
secretary in 2010.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERSNREEBAEGBN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung, aged 74, is a non-executive Director and a founder of the Group. Mr.
Choi co-founded our Group in 1997 and has been the chairman of the Group since its
inception until 2005. Mr. Choi is the emeritus chairman of the Company and a director of
several subsidiaries of the Group. He has approximately 42 years of experience in the textile
industry. Mr Choi was educated in the ZEFIET A + BE R (School of Architecture,
South China University of Technology) and is a Honorary Professor of the University. He is
also a Honorary Citizen of Guangzhou City and Jiangmen City. Mr. Choi was appointed as a
Director in 2004.

Mr. IP Ping Im, aged 73, is a non-executive Director. He is a co-founder and senior partner of
our Group. Mr. Ip has over 33 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Ip was appointed
as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong, aged 62, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lau has over 33 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. Lau holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology from
the Hong Kong Technical College. He is a member of the General Committee of Federation of
Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Lau was appointed as a non-executive Director in 2007. He is also a
director of several subsidiaries of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director. He is
currently the executive chairman of Café de Coral Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company which he joined in 1984, and has considerable experience in planning and
management. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director of Starlite Holdings
Limited since 1993 and Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited since 2006 and a non-executive
director of Tao Heung Holdings Limited in 2007, all three companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts, a Master degree
in City Planning from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in
Business Administration and is also bestowed as Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University. He
is currently an executive committee member of the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association, the general committee member of the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, an
appointed member of the Quality Tourism Services Association, a full member of the Canadian
and the Hong Kong Institute of Planners, a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing, the
Honorary President of Hong Kong Foodstuffs Association as well as being appointed by the
HKSAR Government as member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board and member of the
Provisional Minimum Wage Commission. He is also the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong
Institute of Marketing and the chairman of the Business Enterprise Management Centre of the
Hong Kong Management Association. Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in 2007.

Mr. NG Ching Wah, aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director: Mr. Ng has over 23
years of senior management experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Ng is
currently the non-executive independent director of HKC International Holdings Limited, a
Hong Kong listed company and director and member of the executive committee for
Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited, a Thailand listed company. He was the chief
executive officer of Hong Kong CSL Limited and SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings
Limited, a Hong Kong listed company and the President of PCCW Mobility Services Limited.
Mr. Ng is the Honorary Advisor of the Communications Association of Hong Kong and was a
member of the Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee (D21SAC). Mr. Ng graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1975, with a Bachelor of Business and Administration.
Mr. Ng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2007.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EENSREEASHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel, aged 53, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Sze has
senior management experience in the private and investment banking industry serving high
net worth clients and institutions. He currently serves as deputy chief executive of EFG Bank
AG, Hong Kong Branch for Asia Pacific Region. He was the managing director, head of
investment of Citi Wealth Management for Asia Pacific region, the chief executive officer of
Asia-Pacific for Barclays Wealth and an executive director in the private clients division at
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Hong Kong. Mr. Sze holds a Master of Business from the
University of Newcastle, Australia. He is a Fellow of CPA Australia. Mr. Sze was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director in 2007.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. PANG Ping Hung, aged 59, joined the Group in 2005 and is the general manager,
responsible for the printing, dyeing and finishing division of our Group. Mr. Pang has over 33
years of experience in the textile industry.

Mr. GOONETILLEKE Rohan, aged 57, is the managing director of Textured Jersey Lanka
(Private) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company since June 2003. Mr. Goonetilleke holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Portsmouth,
United Kingdom. Prior to joining the Group, he was the managing director of Linea Clothing
(Private) Limited.

Mr. NG Ching Wa, Daniel, aged 45, joined the Group in 2009 and is the Head of Management
Information System responsible for managing the information system of our Group. Mr. Ng
holds Master's degrees in Accounting, IT Management and Finance. He is a Certified SAP
Consultant, Certified Information System Auditor and full member of Hong Kong Computer
Society.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Directors’ Report
EER®/E

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the 2010 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacturing and trading of textile products. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 2010 Financial Year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 38 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK13 cents (2009: HK3 cents) per share and the special dividend of
HK22 cents (2009: Nil) per share were paid on 8 January 2010 and 25 February 2010
respectively to shareholders. The Board has proposed the payment of a final dividend of HKI7
cents (2009: HK12 cents) per share to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members at the close of business on 27 August 2010.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from 24 August 2010 to 27 August 2010 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares can be registered. In order to qualify for
the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company's Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops |712-1716, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 23 August 2010.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated balance sheet of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page ||| of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the 2010
Financial Year are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company's listed securities during the 2010 Financial Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the law of Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the 2010 Financial Year are set
out in note |9 to the financial statements.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Directors’ Report
EER®/E

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2010, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$1,927,096,000 (2009: HK$2,092,854,000), comprising the share premium, the capital
reserve, share-based reserve and the retained earnings of the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, in addition to the retained
earnings of the Company, the share premium and capital reserves of the Company are also
available for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Expenditure of approximately HK$252,326,000 (2009: HK$211,835,000) was incurred during
the 2010 Financial Year primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 7
to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2010 are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

DONATIONS
During the 2010 Financial Year, the Group made charitable and other donation totalling
approximately HK$12,000 (2009: HK$126,000).

CAPITALISED INTERESTS
During the 2010 Financial Year, no interest had been capitalised (2009: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the 2010 Financial Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 47.6% of the Group's total sales and the percentage of sales attributable to the
Group's largest customer amounted to approximately 21.6%. Purchases from the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 37.8% of the total purchases and the
percentage of purchase attributable to the Group’s largest supplier amounted to
approximately 21.9%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any
interests in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers noted above.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Directors’ Report
EER®/E

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the 2010 Financial Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr.-WAN Wai Loi (Chairman)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Chief Executive Officer)

Dr. LAM King Man

Mr. LAM Hing Chau, Leon (Appointed on 21 September 2009)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung
Mr. IP Ping Im
Mr. HO Hsiang Ming, James (Resigned on 28 August 2009)
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong
Mr.Vivek KALRA (Resigned on 28 August 2009)
(Alternate Director to Mr. HO Hsiang Ming, James)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Pursuant to article 130 of the Articles, at every AGM one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years. Accordingly, Mr.Tsang Kang Po, Mr. Choi Kin Chung, Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr.
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel will retire by rotation from the Board at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as Directors.

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service agreement with the Company for
an initial term of two years with effect from | April 2007. Each service agreement will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party by giving to the other party at least six
months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors had been appointed for
an initial term of two years with effect from | May 2007 and subsequently the term of the
appointment has been extended for a further two years. All Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules.

Profile of the above Directors are set out on pages || to |3 of this annual report.
None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by

the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Directors’ Report
EER®/E

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance, to which the Company, or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the 2010 Financial Year or at any time during the 2010 Financial Year.

COMPETING INTEREST AND NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

None of Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an interest in a business which causes or
may cause any significant competition with the business of the Group and any other conflicts
of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of shareholders of the Company passed on 27 April 2007,
the Company adopted a Share Option Scheme subject to the terms and conditions therein.
The options shall expire on I8 July 2017.The closing price of the share of the Company
immediately before the date of grant was HK$4.86 per share.

A.  Summary of the Share Option Scheme
1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to Eligible Persons (as defined in paragraph 2 below).

2. Participants
The Board may grant options to any “Eligible Person”, namely an employee,
director or non-executive director (including INED) of any Member of the Group.

“Member of the Group” means the Company, any holding company, subsidiaries
or affiliates of the Company or other companies or associated companies of the
Company which the Board determines will be subject to the Share Option
Scheme.

3. Maximum number of Shares
The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of Listing (the "Listing
Date"), representing 143,293,600 Shares or 30% of the Shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant
The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each Eligible Person (including exercised and outstanding options) in
any |2-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at the date of
grant of the option.
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Directors’ Report
EER®/E

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A.  Summary of the Share Option Scheme (Contd)
5. Time of exercise of options and duration of Share Option Scheme

(a)  General vesting period
The general vesting period for options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 5 anniversary of grant date unless the Board specifies a different
vesting period under the terms of the offer. The option period will not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant.

An option may be exercised to the extent that it has vested and any
performance conditions or targets set by the Board have been met.

(b)  Duration of the Share Option Scheme
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be 10 years from the
Listing Date.

6. Exercise price and payment on grant
(a)  Exercise price
The exercise price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be
the price determined by the Board and notified to the option holder which
shall not be less than the higher of:

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets;

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet of the Shares on the date of grant of the option;
and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.
(b) ~ Payment on grant
Eligible Persons are not required to pay for the acceptance of an option
granted to them.
7. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will terminate automatically at midnight on the day
immediately before the 0th anniversary of the Listing Date.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Directors’ Report
EER®/E

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

B.  Options granted by the Company
As at 31 March 2010, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 19,410,000 Shares
granted to a director and eligible full-time employees pursuant to the terms of the
Share Option Scheme remained outstanding, details of which were as follows:

BRESE (B

B. AAFRCRHZEBRE
R2010F3A318 + RIFERIEE 2 EHE
FTEERZBEENAEA £19,410,000%
AARIBRGD ZBRERRITE  BEFEN

T
Number of share options
Exercise BREZA
Price As at Changes during the period As at
Date of 1%  Exercisable 01/04/2009 BAEH 31/03/2010
Grantee Grant HK$  Period #2009 F  Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled #2010 F
ARA R A Br  TFEH 481H R Eig:d F3d +8§ 3A31H
Executive Director
TES
Lam Hing Chau, Leon 18/07/2007 5.04 18/07/2010- 600,000 — — — — 600,000
(Note) 1710712017
RERL (M 7E)
Eligible Employees 18/07/2007 5.04 18/07/2010- 20,190,000 — — 1,380,000 — 18,810,000
RERER 1710712017
20,790,000 — — 1,380,000 — 19,410,000

Note:  Mr. Lam Hing Chau, Leon has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company with effect
from 21 September 2009.

The fair value of options granted is approximately at an average of HK$1.222 per share
on the basis of binominal model (the “Model”). The significant inputs into the Model
were the closing price of the Share of the Company at the date of grant of HK$4.8 per
share, annual risk-free interest rate of approximately 4.8%, an expected option life of
approximate 6 years, expected volatility of 32% and annual dividend yield of 4%. The
amortised fair value of share options for the year ended 3| March 2010 amounting to
approximately HK$6.8 million (2009: HK$8.9 million) was charged to the income
statement.

The Model was developed for use in estimating fair value of traded options that are fully
transferable. The Model requires input of highly subjective assumptions, including the
expected stock price volatility. Since the Company's share options have characteristics
significantly different from those of traded options, and because change in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, the Model does not
necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value of the share options.

Save as disclosed above, no option had been granted to the Directors, chief executives
or substantial shareholders of the Company or their respective associates under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.
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EER®/E

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchangepursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

ESRFDIARGNEERG 2 BHERKXE

R2010F3A31H  EFRARATHEZRALR
ARE AN EE (TEAEHFRBEBRHEXV
M) M BERNRESFT  BEARBESR
HE KD B35BT HFEN B LMAT RSB IE
EETHENSARARBIAMESZR AR D
T

RRARARDZHA

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

REBRTALIRNBEREHRNE

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Name of capital of the
Director/ Company
Chief Executive Personal Family Corporate Trust REAT
94 interests interests interests interests Total BRTEAR
THERERE AR REER EEER fFlEz By ZENEIH
Choi Kin Chung — — — 171,102,000 171,102,000 I'1.94%
BEh Note |
(Hat1)

Ip Ping Im — 2,000,000 401,000,000 — 403,000,000 28.12%
Emm Note 2

(Ht5t2)
Lam Hing Chau, Leon 100,000 — — — 100,000 0.01%
PRELTE Note 3

(H7£3)
Lam King Man 697,000 — 30,000,000 — 30,697,000 2.14%
MEX Note 4 Note 5
(Hf5t4) (Kt #5)

Lam Wing Tak 12,142,000 887,000 100,000,000 — 113,029,000 7.89%
mEeTE Note 6

(K1 i#6)
Lau YiuTong 51,866,000 — — — 51,866,000 3.62%
ZRE
Tsang Kang Po 1,676,000 1,500,000 100,000,000 — 103,176,000 7.20%
ok Note 7

(Hit7)
Wan Wai Loi 11,048,000 820,000 101,304,000 — 113,172,000 7.90%
FER Note 8

(Hit8)
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Directors’ Report
EER®/E

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

Long positions in Shares (Cont'd)
Notes:

B These Shares are directly held by Silver Bay International Holdings Limited, whose issued share capital is
wholly-owned by Trustcorp Limited, the trustee of the Cypress Pacific Trust, a discretionary trust. For the
purposes of the SFO, Mr. Choi Kin Chung is the founder of the Cypress Pacific Trust.

2. These Shares are directly held by Far East Asia Limited, whose issued share capital is wholly-owned by Mr.
Ip Ping Im.

3. These Shares are directly held by Mr. Lam Hing Chau, Leon, who was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on 21 September 2009.

4. These Shares are held jointly by Dr. Lam King Man and his spouse.

5. These Shares are directly held by Effective Approach Technology Limited, whose issued share capital is 50%
owned by Dr. Lam King Man and 50% owned by the spouse of Dr. Lam King Man.

6. These Shares are directly held by Fifth Element Enterprises Limited, whose issued share capital is 75%
owned by Mr.Lam WingTak and 25% owned by the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak.

7. These Shares are directly held by Top Strong Holdings Limited, whose issued share capital is 50% owned by
Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50% owned by the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po.

8. These Shares are directly held by Hollywood Pacific Limited, whose issued capital is 25% owned by Mr.
Wan Wai Loi and 25% owned by the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company, had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the 2010 Financial Year were the rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in the Company granted to any directors or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

ESRFDFRGNEERG 2 BHER KR
(#)

ERARGB2HER (F)
GER

1. ZE R DA {7 i Silver Bay International Holdings
LimitedE £ # & + M Trustcorp Limited2 HE B
Silver Bay International Holdings LimitedZ B %17 i%
7 o Trustcorp Limited BV 4 {5 5% Cypress Pacific
TrustZ fE5EA - REFRBERIIME - BEREAE
ACypress Pacific TrustZ B3 A e

2. ZE DRI B Far East Asia Limited E#EHE M
R ST 4 2 U Far East Asia Limited 2 B %47
N

3. ZEAQRRRHBEMERLTEEERE  MHERLAE
R2009F9A21 B BZEAKRRRAMITES -

4. ZEARABRMDOAMESXELRALBARSS -

5. #%SARERD A Effective Approach Technology
LimitedEERKA  MARNBELRARBSAIES
Effective Approach Technology LimitedZ 50% 2 %
FIRA o

6. ZE RN AR A Fifth Element Enterprises Limited
EERE MHAKREEEREERSBS HEAFFifth
Element Enterprises LimitedZ 75% % 25%E. 817 i
xo

7. ZERDERA R Top Strong Holdings Limited & #
BE MEEREEREREBDAHEATop Strong
Holdings Limited 250% B # 1T »

8. ZE RN A B i Hollywood Pacific LimitedE & #
EomMABRREEREERE D A% E Hollywood
Pacific Limited,Z 25% B & 1TA K o

B EXHEES  R2010F38318  RIEEHR
G D352 REATREME LMWL -
XSRS B AR DA BB A% @A
BEESEHIARDATRAHN AR B HE T HE
EE (TR BERBEBRHIEXVE) MG - 88
B REHT  FEEAERZRAE -
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EER®/E

FTERRREMATRRQTRGHEBER
ZEERAR

R2010F3A31 A - REARDFZRESR REAEED
FIBUREFEZBLMATLE  THAL(ES
AR TTHAEE RN IR 2 B R 15 SRR A A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2010, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executives of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of

the SFO: BREZEDIRA
Long positions in Shares RRERBHR
Approximate
percentage
interest of
Number of issued share
issued capital of
Name of Shares Aggregate the Company
shareholder Note Nature of interest N long position REQTE BT
RRER ftat BEME RHEE BRAH REAZBHBEIML
Chiu Bo Lan Beneficial owner 820,000 113,172,000 7.90%
EEH BB A
/ Interest of a controlled corporation 101,304,000
NARZHER 2 #R
2 Interest of spouse 11,048,000
REzEs
Hollywood Pacific Limited I Beneficial owner 101,304,000 101,304,000 7.07%
BB A
Lam Wai Yee Beneficial owner 2,000,000 403,000,000 28.12%
M= BaERA
3 Interest of spouse 401,000,000
[ £
Far East Asia Limited 4 Beneficial owner 401,000,000 401,000,000 27.98%
ERERA
Wong Bik Ha Beneficial owner 887,000 113,029,000 7.89%
BEE BB A
5 Interest of a controlled corporation 100,000,000
NARZHER 2 #R
6 Interest of spouse 12,142,000
REzEs
Fifth Element Enterprises 5 Beneficial owner 100,000,000 100,000,000 6.98%
Limited BExSBREA
Law Oi Mui 7 Interest of spouse 171,102,000 171,102,000 11.94%
ER REzEs
Trustcorp Limited 8 Trustee 171,102,000 | 71,102,000 | 1.94%
EFEA
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EER®/E

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

FERRREMATRARTROGAEBR
B EERKE (B)

(Cont'd)
Long positions in Shares (Cont'd) ARARBPZHER (B)

Approximate
percentage
interest of

Number of issued share
issued capital of
Name of Shares Aggregate the Company
shareholder Note Nature of interest NN long position REQTE BT
REEMH i3 BEEE ROEA BRAH REZHOBEIL
Silver Bay International 8 Beneficial owner 71,102,000 71,102,000 |1.94%
Holdings Limited EnEAA
Wong Mei Ling Beneficial owner 1,500,000 103,176,000 7.20%
BER EEBEAA
9 Interest of a controlled corporation 100,000,000
RERZHER 2 #H
10 Interest of spouse 1,676,000
[ F
Top Strong Holdings 9 Beneficial owner 100,000,000 100,000,000 6.98%
Limited BExBEAA
The Capital Group Interest of a controlled corporation 123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%
Companies, Inc. REREHBE 2 #Em
Capital Group Interest of a controlled corporation 123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%
International, Inc. RERZEHEE 2 B
Capital International, Inc. Interest of a controlled corporation 123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%
REREHER 2 #R
I Investment manager
REgE
Capital International [ Interest of a controlled corporation 123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%
Investments 1V, LLC NEREGIEE 2
Capital International [ Interest of a controlled corporation 119,620,100 119,620,100 8.35%
Investments IV, L.P REREHER 2 ER
Capital International [ Beneficial owner 119,620,100 119,620,100 8.35%

Private Equity Fund IV, L.P

BalisA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(Cont'd)

Long positions in Shares (Contd)

Notes:

B Hollywood Pacific Limited is 25% owned by Mr.Wan Wai Loi and 25% owned by Ms. Chiu Bo Lan, the
spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi.

2. Ms. Chiu Bo Lan is the spouse of Mr.Wan Wai Loi, a Director.
3. Ms. Lam Wai Yee is the spouse of Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.
4. Far East Asia Limited is wholly-owned by Mr.Ip Ping Im, a Director.

5. Fifth Element Enterprises Limited is 75% owned by Mr. Lam Wing Tak and 25% owned by Ms.Wong Bik Ha,
the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak.

6. Ms. Wong Bik Ha is the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak, a Director.
7. Ms. Law Oi Mui is the spouse of Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a Director.

8. Silver Bay International Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Trustcorp Limited, the trustee of the Cypress
Pacific Trust, a discretionary trust. For the purposes of the SFO, Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a Director, is the
founder of the Cypress Pacific Trust.

9. Top Strong Holdings Limited is 50% owned by Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50% owned by Ms. Wong Mei Ling,
the spouse of Mr.Tsang Kang Po.

10.  Ms.Wong Mei Ling is the spouse of Mr.Tsang Kang Po, a Director.

I'l. Capital International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P is a private equity fund managed by Capital International,
Inc. Capital International Investments IV, L.P.is the general partner of Capital International Private Equity
Fund IV, LP. The general partner of Capital International Investments IV, LP is Capital International
Investments IV, LLC, which is also the general partner of CGPE IV LP, an employee securities fund formed
to invest side-by-side with Capital International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P. Capital International, Inc. is the
managing member of Capital International Investments [V, LLC.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of any other member in the Group

FERRREMATREARTRGNEBR
HZRERAR (B)

ERRRBZHR (E)
firat -

1. FEREEREERMBHEHZ L9 5IEE Hollywood
Pacific Limited 225%##5 °

2. RERLLTAESFERA4LZEB-
3. MEBRIAESEMMAEZERE-
4. Far East Asia Limited REZERKEE2EHE ©

5, MEREEREEGBREE X+ 55 # A Fifth
Element Enterprises LimitedZ 75% % 25%# 2 °

6. EEBERIREEHRBALEZEE-
7. BREBRLIREEERTRALCEE-

8. Silver Bay International Holdings Limitedf
Trustcorp Limited®&# 4  Trustcorp Limited A&
HE{Z7E Cypress Pacific TrustZ 255 A « BEF RS
BhIME - EEEEP L EACypress Pacific TrustZ
BIHEA

9. EHRTAERHEBEXRRZLTHHIHEATop Strong
Holdings Limited 2 50%# 5 °

10, BERZLIRESCHEALEZES -

11.  Capital International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P.J3
i Capital International, Inc. BB 2 LEFHFES -
Capital International Investments IV, L.P.% Capital
International Private Equity Fund IV, LP.Z £@& %
A e Capital International Investments IV, L.P.Z % &
&% A B Capital International Investments IV, LLC ®
ZATINACGPE IV, LP.ZE&EAE A ° CGPE IV
LPARBEZESES ML 2B KA HC Capital
International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P. £ R&#& °
Capital International, Inc.A Capital International
Investments IV, LLCZEEK DA ¢

RESEEMEMREQ R 2RO REBRSG 27
B

Approximate

percentage

Name of Number of of issued

Name of member substantial issued share capital

of the Group shareholder Note Nature of interest shares RAQERERZ

AEERERA AR TERRER ik BEEE R EE BREDL

Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Brandix Lanka Limited | Beneficial owner 76,666,992 40%

Limited ExBBA

Note: ftat -

I Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited is owned as to 60% by Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and 40% by Brandix Lanka Limited.
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Directors’ Report
EER®/E

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(Cont'd)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of any other member in the Group (Contd)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, no other persons had any interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the 2010 Financial Year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 34 to the financial statements also constitute
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

During the 2010 Financial Year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions
not exempted under the Listing Rules 14A.33:

Continuing Connected Transaction

(1) Sale of products to Bandix group and its associates
Sale of knitted fabric to Brandix together with its subsidiaries (“Brandix Group”) and its
associate pursuant to a sale of products master agreement (the “Brandix Sale of
Products Master Agreement”) dated 27 August 2007 between the Company and
Brandix Group. Details of the Brandix Sale of Products Master Agreement are set out in
the circular of the Company dated 14 September 2007 (the “2007 Circular”) and the
circular of the Company dated || March 2010 (the "2010 Circular”). Transactions took
place under the Brandix Sale of Products Master Agreement for the 2010 Financial Year
did not exceed the annual cap of HK$ 1,045 million (2009: HK$616 million).

According to the Listing Rules, Brandix, by virtue of its shareholding in PT Sri Lanka, a
subsidiary of the Company, is a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
and hence a connected person of the Company. Brandix Group and its associates are
therefore also regarded as connected persons of the Company.

FERRREMATRARTROGAEBR
B EERKE (B)

RESEEAEMRELAAZROREBRA 2T
B (&)

Br EXCETBEESN - R2010F 38310 EHM
ANIRARRRO K EEBRDPEEREES L
BIEPIEIREBEFE 2B MLz S

PN
KR e

BEROURGESR 22 H

ARE - ARRARRATANEL AR ZME
AFER2010F P B EF AR HES BT ER
L8 BEARAESUHBARD S EMEMD
EANBRZBOREFMES -

BERXS
EURHBRENEUNBIALRS - FB LD
RAFREDHEDERS -

R2010F B FE - AREF T T & LM AR
14A 3R 2 HERER S

BEBRERS

(1) [EBrandixEBREBEAHEE R
mBrandix:& R EFIE A & ([Brandix =& ]) &
HEe A S E T8 2R A A 5 ©Brandix
R2007F8A27R I U EMEE AT
([BrandixE REE @] ) B ° BrandixE
mIBE RS 2 FEEN2007F9A 148 28
& ([2007F @ K]) ©2010F3 8118 2B K
(T2010F@K]) - R2010F BT BEE - REE
BrandixE FIHEBMRET IR I T EZREF
€ LPR1,0455 8% T (2009%F : 616 H B
JT) °

B EmHA - ERBrandixE A A D 7 B
NPT TEFHFBE  BrandixBEERR
(REMBRAZER) EMARDAIZEEA
T o Al BrandixEEREBEANRERAE
ARARZBBAL
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Continuing Connected Transaction (Contd)

(2)

(3)

Sale of Products to PT Sri Lanka

Sale of knitted fabrics and greige fabrics to PT Sri Lanka pursuant to a master
agreement (the “PT Sri Lanka Sale of Products Master Agreement"”) dated 30 April 2007
between the Company and PT Sri Lanka. Details of PT Sri Lanka Sale of Products
Master Agreement are set out in the Prospectus. Transactions took place under the PT
Sri Lanka Sale of Products Master Agreement for the 2010 Financial Year did not exceed
the annual cap of HK$79 million (2009: HK$58 million).

According to the Listing Rules, PT Sri Lanka is regarded as a connected person as PT Sri
Lanka is an associate of connected persons as mentioned above.

Sale of Products to HC Companies

Sale of knitted fabrics to companies in which Mr. Henry Choi has substantial interest
(the "HC Companies™) pursuant to a master agreement (the "HC Companies Sale of
Products Master Agreement”) dated 30 April 2007 between the Company and the HC
Companies. Details of HC Companies Sale of Products Master Agreement are set out in
the Prospectus. Transactions took place under the HC Companies Sale of Products
Master Agreement for the 2010 Financial Year did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$25.9 million (2009: HK$22.5 million).

Mr. Henry Choi, who is the son of Mr. Choi Kin Chung (a Director), is regarded as a
connected person of the Company by virtue of Listing Rule 14A.11(4)(b).

The Directors, including the INED, have reviewed the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions made during the 2010 Financial Year and confirmed that these transactions were
entered into:

()
)

G)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

in accordance with each of the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Continuing Connected Transaction (Cont'd)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor of the Company
to perform certain factual finding procedures on the above continuing connected transactions
for the 2010 Financial Year (the "Transactions”) on a sample basis in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Related Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures
Regarding Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has reported their factual findings for the selected samples based on
the agreed procedures to the Board stating that:

(

) theTransactions had been approved by the Directors;

(2)  the pricing of Transactions (for the samples selected) were in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group;

(3) the Tansactions were entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the Transactions (for the sample selected); and

(4)  the amounts of the Transactions had not exceeded the relevant caps as disclosed in the
Prospectus and the 2007 Circular respectively.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
[4A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which
need to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules and no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the 2010 Financial Year or at any time during the 2010 Financial Year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and determined by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of the relevant Director's experience, responsibility and the time
devoted to the business of the Group.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the shareholders of
the Company by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) was established by the Board with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng
Ching Wah and Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael. Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from page 29 to page 35 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, as the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
percentage of the Company's shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the Company's event after the 2010 Financial Year are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for 2010 Financial Year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of
the Company will be proposed for approval by shareholders of the Company at the

forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 9 July 2010
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The Board recognises the importance of maintaining high standard of corporate governance
practices to enhance corporate value, transparency and accountability and to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions and certain recommended best
practices (“Recommended Best Practices”) set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 4
to the Listing Rules where suitable to the Company so as to enhance the corporate
governance standard of the Company throughout the 2010 Financial Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securnities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the Model
Code for the 2010 Financial Year.

THE BOARD

The overall management of the business of the Group is vested to the Board. The Board is
responsible for the formulation of strategic, management and financial objectives of the Group
and ensuring that the interest of shareholders including those minority shareholders are
protected. Daily operations and administration of the Group are delegated to the executive
Directors and the management.

The Board Composition
The Board currently has | | members consisting of 5 executive Directors and 6 non-executive
Directors of which 3 are INEDs. The composition is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr.WAN Wai Loi (Chairman)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. LAM King Man

Mr.LAM Hing Chau, Leon

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung
Mr. IP Ping Im

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael
Mr.NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Profile of the Directors is set out on pages || to |3 of this annual report and is updated on
the website of the Company.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with Directors having sales and marketing
experience and technical knowledge in fabric business, administration and management
experience in the PRC factories, financial and accounting skill is appropriate for effective
decision making, taking into account the nature and scope of the business operations and
development of the Group.
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THE BOARD (Cont'd)

The Board Meeting

The Board meets at least 4 times per year and additional meetings are convened when
deemed necessary by Board. The schedule of regular meetings for the whole year has been
informed to each Director: Notices of Board meeting will be served to all the Directors at
least 14 days before the meeting. Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by
the Company Secretary as delegated by the Chairman. All the Directors are given the
opportunity to include any matters which they believe to be appropriate in the agenda of the
Board meetings.

Agenda and relevant information of Board meeting with adequate background information
and supporting analysis are made available to the Directors at least 3 days before the
intended date of the Board meeting. All the Directors are given separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management for further information and enquiries. The
Company Secretary and senior management attends all the meetings of the Board and Board
committees to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance and financial matters.

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between the directors/substantial
shareholders and the Company will be dealt with in the Board meeting. Pursuant to the
Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote on (nor is counted in the quorum) any resolution of
the Board in respect of any contract or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in
which he or any of his associates (including any person who would be deemed to be an
“associate” of the Directors under the Listing Rules) has any material interest, except in
certain special circumstances. The chairman of the Board meeting is required to ensure that
each Director is aware of such requirement at the commencement of each Board meeting and
declaration of interest is properly made in the Board meeting where conflicts of interest arise.

Directors have access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary and key officers
of the Company in relation to the board procedures. Draft minutes of Board/Board
committee meetings recorded in sufficient details the matters considered by the participants
of such meetings and decisions reached are forwarded to the participants for comments
within a reasonable time after the meetings and final versions of minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board committee are kept by the Company Secretary, which are open for
inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information to allow the
Directors to fulfill their duties properly. Directors may seek independent professional advice at
the Company’s expense, if necessary, with the approval of the Board.

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance in respect of any legal actions which may be taken against Directors and
management in execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.

During the 2010 Financial Year, the Board held 6 meetings to approve interim and final results
announcements, interim reports and annual reports, to consider dividend policy and to discuss
significant issues and the general operation of the Company. The attendance record of the
Directors is set out in the table on page 32 of this annual report.

THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer are segregated and not exercised by the same individual. The Board is
headed by the Chairman Mr. Wan Wai Loi, with the assistance of the Vice Chairman, Mr. Tsang
Kang Po and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Lam Wing Tak.
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THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (Contd)

There is a clear segregation between the Chairman’s responsibility and the Chief Executive
Officer’s responsibility. The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective running of
the Board and ensuring that all material issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the management of the
daty-to-day operations of the Group’s business and the implementation of the approved
strategies of the Group. In addition, each executive Director is responsible for the
management of different functions of the business of the Group.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures all the Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and be provided with adequate
information in a timely manner.

INEDS

During the 2010 Financial Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise. The Board
considers that each of the Non-executive Directors and INEDs brings his own relevant
expertise to the Board.

The INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the issues of
strategic direction, development, performance and risk management of the Group.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each of the INEDs of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent of the management and free of any relationship that could materially interfere
with the exercise of their independent judgment.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person as a Director to fill a
casual vacancy on or as an additional member of the Board. Suitable candidates who are
experienced and competent and able to fulfill the fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and
diligence would be recommended to the Board.

Each of the executive Directors was appointed for an initial term of two years and each
service agreement will continue thereafter until terminated by either party by giving to the
other party at least six months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the INEDs) was appointed for a specific term
of 2 years and subsequently the term of the appointment has been extended for a further 2
years. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election
pursuant to the Articles.

Pursuant to the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or
as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at the next following
general meeting after appointment. At every AGM, one-third of the Directors, including the
Chairman, shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders. The
Directors appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement and re-election as
mentioned above shall be taken into account in calculating the total number of Directors for
the time being but shall not be taken into account in calculating the number of Directors who
are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-election shall have their biographical
details made available to the shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision on
their re-election. Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director shall be
timely disclosed to the shareholders by announcement and shall include in such
announcement, the reasons given by the Director for his resignation.
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RESPONSIBLITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of his responsibilities as a
Director of the Company and of the business and operating activities and development of the
Company. Every Director is required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of
the Board and the material matters of the Company and to serve the Board with such degree
of care and due dilligence given his own expertise, qualification and professionalism.

Every newly appointed Director has been provided with comprehensive and tailored induction
of business operation of the Group, including a site visit of our factory in China on the first
occasion of his appointment. A comprehensive Compliance Manual has been provided to each
Director and has been updated. All Directors have been updated and briefed the relevant
changes in legal and regulatory matters to ensure that they have a proper understanding of
the operations and the business of the Company and that they are fully aware of their
responsibilities under the applicable laws and regulations.

The non-executive Directors attended the Board meetings and advised their opinion on the
business strategy of the Company and reviewed the financial and operation performance of
the Group.

INEDs are all or a majority of members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.
Executive Directors normally meet on an informal basis and participate in senior management
meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of the latest operations and performance of the
Group and to monitor and ensure the management carry out the directions and strategies set
by the Board of directors correctly and appropriately.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

The attendance record of Director at the meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee during the 2010 Financial Year are set
out in the following table:

Board
B=R
Executive Directors BHITEE
Mr.Wan Wai Loi FEREL 5/6
Mr. Tsang Kang Po Rk 6/6
Mr. Lam Wing Tak MEREEE 5/6
Dr. Lam King Man MEXE L 5/6
Mr. Lam Hing Chau, Leon MRELRE 5 & 5/5
(Appointed on 21 September 2009) (FA 20094 9 B 21 BEZRT)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Choi Kin Chung gt 4/6
Mr. Ip Ping Im EWMEE 4/6
Mr. Ho Hsiang Ming, James BRREE 11
(Resigned on 28 August 2009) (742009 F 8 A 28 HEHT)
Mr. Lau Yiu Tong FEREAE 6/6
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITESE
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael Rk S A 6/6
Mr. Ng Ching Wah HBEESLE 6/6
Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel 1 B & 5 A 5/6
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 main Board Committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, each chaired by different INED, to
assist the Board for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The terms of
reference setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are available on the website of
the Company. Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and
recommendations at the Board meetings.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code.The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel; Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (who are INEDs). Mr. Sze Kwok
Wing, Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the chairman of the Audit Committee,

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing, overseeing and supervision of the
effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting process, internal control systems and risk
management. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been reviewed by the
Board with reference to the CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during 2010 Financial Year. The major work performed
by the Audit Committee in respect of 2010 Financial Year included approving the terms of
engagement (including the remuneration) of the external auditor; reviewing the unaudited
interim financial information and interim results announcement for the six months ended 30
September 2009; reviewing the audited annual financial information and final results
announcement for 2010 Financial Year; reviewing the work of the Group'’s internal audit
department and assessing the effectiveness of the Group'’s systems of risk management and
internal control. The Audit Committee recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company's external auditor for the ensuing year and the
related resolutions shall be put forth in the coming AGM. The attendance of the Directors for
the Audit Committee meetings is set out in the table on page 32 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of the audit and its cost
effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s auditor. For 2010
Financial Year, the fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the Company's
auditor were as follows:
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2010 2009

2010 & 2009 F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE 7 FHT

Audit Services B 1,781 1,730
Non-audit Services FEEZIR

—Tax consultation services and — T 75 R ) AR A £
review interim financial information EXPHUEER 402 780

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non-audit services provided by the
Company's auditor and concluded that in their opinion such services did not affect the
independence of the auditor.

ERZBSCRAADARHUMAMEHR Z2HEE
ZR% REZERELTHEGHM 2B -
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

Audit Committee (Contd)

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in conjunction with the auditor, the
audited annual financial statements of the Group for the 2010 Financial Year and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The Annual Report for the 2010
Financial Year has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Recommended Best Practice. The members of the
Nomination Committee are Mr. Ng Ching Wah; Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok
Wing, Nigel (who are INEDs); Mr. Tsang Kang Po and Mr. Lam Wing Tak (who are executive
Directors). Mr. Ng Ching Wah is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of Directors and the management of the Board succession.

The Nomination Committee met twice during the 2010 Financial Year. The major work
performed by the Nomination Committee in respect of the 2010 Financial Year included
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive directors and make
recommendation on the appointment of executive Director, Mr. Lam Hing Chau, Leon, re-
election of Mr.Tsang Kang Po, Mr. Choi Kin Chung, Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr. Sze
Kwok Wing, Nigel as the Directors of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The attendance of the Directors for the Nomination Committee meetings is set out
in the table on page 32 of this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The members of the Remuneration Committee
are Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel and Mr. Ng Ching Wah (who are
INEDs) and Mr. Lam Wing Tak and Mr.Tsang Kang Po (who are executive Directors). Mr. Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review and determine the terms
of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to Directors and senior
management of the Group with reference to the nature of their work, complexity of the
responsibilities and performance. No director is allowed to take part in any discussion about
his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the 2010 Financial Year. The major work
performed by the Remuneration Committee for the 2010 Financial Year included reviewing
the remuneration of the Directors with reference to the remuneration level of directors of
comparable listed companies. The attendance of the Directors for the Remuneration
Committee meeting is set out in the table on page 32 of this annual report.

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Appendix |6 of the Listing Rules are set out in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements on page 100. The Directors’ fee shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval at general meetings. Other emoluments shall from time to time be
determined by the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities and
subject to a review by the Remuneration Committee.

2009 / 2010 Annual Report &3k
e <

ESRZEE ()

ERZEE(H)
ERZEGENEREHAIMNENLEEREAE
BE2010F M BERE 2T B]E - RAKERRHZ
S RARER  2010FHRFE 2 FMEMBEL
ZESEM -

B¥EES

REZEEMN2007F4A278KY  TRARES
RTHZERESE - REZBe K EAMEE
TE  BRBKEE BB E (BSABY IENT
BE) UREERLERMBELLE (BE AT
%) MEERLARLZESTE -

RAZBEZIZRERNZAEZREZREL
ZEEMEERREHRES

R2010FHREE REZBEERTT2REH -
ERR2010FHMRFR REZEQCETCEE
BEEREMBIFRTESZBYL  URE
EHEREEAMTESERERERREFAE L
BEERERELE  FRPELE  REEEENER
RELEEARFERE EEELER - E2HE
REZBEERNBEANAEFRMFIAZERA -

FHEES

FHEE@MN2007F4827ARY - WHAGEE
ATAIEHEAREGE - ZTHEE e 2N E AR
WAEE  mEAAERIBELE (REABUE
HITEE) RMEELE RS ER A4 (BEAHT
%) c BRKXELAFNZESTE -

FHEZEG 2 IERERZRETIELE AR®
BREMRENRE BHREBEENTAREESER
RREBABZHEMAAKR  EAREIMENE
- ENESEI2ENREBEAGTH -

ROI0FMREE - FMEZREERTTIAGE
BERN20105MREE  FHZEGCETZEE
BEBRE2RILBR LT RARAZESHMKTAE
MEZHE EFTLFEFMZEEEZLHANL
FHRENBZRA -

RIREE D BB 16115 K L 78 BI B 8167 5
BLEEMENFTINEI100EEA B BREM
26 c EEUR LW ARBRAE LEKRA
B BEEC/HAMRAAESRTH2REZE LR
ENEEREHFHEZESEN -



Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Corporate Governance Report
TEER/RRE

ACCOUNTANCY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Company’s financial
statements for 2010 Financial Year which give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group. The Company's interim report and annual report are prepared and published in
accordance with statutory requirements and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in a
timely manner required under the Listing Rules. Directors are provided with adequate
information to enable them to make an informed assessment of financial and other
information on matters for their approval.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting responsibility to the
shareholders on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 36 to 37 of this annual report.

Internal controls

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the assets of the Group. The Company has from time to time
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control systems in order to ensure that they meet
with the dynamic and ever changing business environment.

During the 2010 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and the training programmes and
budget through the Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee with the assistance
of an international independent risk consulting firm.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Effective Communication

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications with shareholders and
strives to ensure the timeliness, completencess and accuracy of information disclosure to
shareholders and to the protection in the interests of shareholders. The Board maintains an
on-going dialogue with shareholders through general meeting of the Company to
communicate with shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and the representative of each
committee have attended the general meeting to answer any questions from shareholders. As
a channel to further promote effective communication, the Group maintains a website,
allowing shareholders to access updates on the Company’s particulars where the Company's
announcements, financial information and other information are posted.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantially separate issue. A
shareholder is permitted to appoint any number of proxies to attend and vote in his stead.
The notice of AGM was sent to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting and the notice of all other general meetings to be sent at least 10 clear business days.

Voting by Poll

The Articles has set out the rights of shareholders and procedures demanding and conducting
a poll on resolutions at general meeting, procedures for and shareholders’ right to demand a
poll have been specified in corporate communications to shareholders and explained details of
such rights at the commencement of the general meeting of shareholders by the Chairman. As
required by the Listing Rules, all the general meetings will be voted by way of poll. The results
of the poll, if any, are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR S

PRICEWATERHOUSE( QOPERS

BORKESHMEBAR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group") set out on pages 38 to |10, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2010, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Independent Auditor’s Report
VR 7% T

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 9 July 2010
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Financial Information
B 7% & &

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT For the year ended 31 March 2010

SBAWBR 22010838318 1L5E

2010 2009

2010 2009 &

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

fat FTHER TET

Revenue WA 5 5,883,413 4734816

Cost of sales HHE A 25 (4,661,649) (4,047,859)

Gross profit EF 1,221,764 686,957
Other income and other Hi A REM (FR) /

(losses)/gains - net Wz — % 24 67,219 59,552
Distribution and selling expenses DERHEERST 25 (135,694) (149,850)
General and administrative expenses —RRITHAX 25 (184,164) (170,580)
Operating profit KRN 969,125 426,079
Finance income 3 ON 27 4,946 16,584
Finance costs TR 27 (3,833) (14,767)
Share of profit of associates DIEEE DR ZRT 9(a) 6,706 1423
Share of loss of jointly controlled entities SERREFHERZEE 10(a) (8,413) —
Profit before income tax P85t Ala R 968,53 429319
Income tax expense FTig R % 28 (149,680) (48,713)
Profit for the year FERA 818,851 380,606
Profit attributable to: THATEGEET

Equity holders of the Company ARAERFEA 803,186 376,515

Minority interests DEIR R R 15,665 4,091

818,851 380,606
Earnings per share for profit attributable ARAIRIERA A

to the equity holders of the Company 15 F E % A

during the year =3k

— basic and diluted (HK$) —BEARREE (Br) 29 0.56 0.26
Dividends B8 30 745,127 214,940

The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Information
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME For the year ended 31 March 2010

SEE2EWER 82010638318 LEE

2010 2009

20105 2009

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

liFsa THER TET

Profit for the year FERF 818,851 380,606
Other comprehensive income: HitsZ2EWA :

Currency translation differences INEHMEEE 6,488 36,253

Total comprehensive income for the year FEXEKARE 825,339 416,859
Attributable to: THALEMS:

Equity holders of the Company RRARERFEEA 809,951 412,768

Minority interests DER R = 15,388 4,091

Total comprehensive income for the year FEXERARE 825,339 416,859

The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F46E110B 2 A

2009 / 2010 Annual Report E_ib’z

MismE 2B -

—

39



40

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Financial Information
B 7% & &

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET As at 31 March 2010
BEBESMER #201083831H

2010 2009
2010 F 2009 F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ft &t TER TET
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights HE L ]2 3 6 27,188 27931
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 1,444,561 1,499,192
Interests in associates i RN 9 27,752 23,201
Interests in jointly controlled entities PEREH B 2 Em 10 102,199 20,141
Deferred income tax assets RILEFSHEE 21 4,950 —
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEESHERE I 1,780 |,760
Structured deposits and bonds HEEEFEIRES 12 130,301 —
1,738,731 1,572,225
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 13 1,173,632 761,640
Trade and bills receivables U R ERE 14 788,820 600,116
Deposits, prepayments and 7 BAFER
other receivables H b U FIB 15 66,490 18,289
Derivative financial instruments PTESBIA 16 4,961 |,596
Structured deposits and bonds LEBEFARES |2 194,267 —
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 17 689,383 1,431,664
2,917,553 2,813,305
Total assets EEAE 4,656,284 4,385,530
EQUITY EH
Equity attributable to TATEEHEA
equity holders of the Company LR
Share capital EEEN 18 1,433 1,433
Share premium R4 B 18 1,371,817 1,687,063
Reserves 1 19 1,880,980 1,422,470
3,254,230 3,110,966
Minority interests DHRRER 65,723 50,335
Total equity EREE 3,319,953 3,161,301

The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Information
Bt 7% &

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET As at 31 March 2010

BEBESER 72010838318

2010 2009
2010 2009 &
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
fit &t TER FET
LIABILITIES =4
Non-current liabilities *rEEE
Borrowings BE 20(a) 848 120,377
Finance lease obligations BEMRERE 20(b) — 232
Derivative financial instruments TESRMTA 6 72 —
Deferred income tax liabilities BLEFMEHARE 21 16,751 4,825
17,671 125,434
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and bills payables ERERRRE 22 805,291 551,432
Accruals and other payables JEETIER R E b B 5RIE 23 354,356 239,264
Amount due to an associate JERTEEE A BB 9 5,250 —
Borrowings P 20(a) 73,430 284,258
Finance lease obligations BERERE 20(b) 79 657
Derivative financial instruments TESmTA 16 1,240 61
Current income tax liabilities REFERAE 79,014 23,123
1,318,660 1,098,795
Total liabilities afEeE 1,336,331 1,224,229
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 4,656,284 4,385,530
Net current assets RBEERE 1,598,893 [, 714510
Total assets less current liabilities EELABERRBEE 3,337,624 3,286,735

Approved by the Board of Directors on 9 July 2010:

Wan Wai Loi
FER

Director

BE

The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

EERMN2010F7 9B ERSB ¢

Tsang Kang Po
BHR
Director

BE
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BALANCE SHEET As at 31 March 2010

BERMER 1201038310
2010 2009
2010 F 2009 F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
gz FER FET
ASSETS &gE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R BARZIEE 8 8 8
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries Al =PNGIE ¢ 8 2,068,349 2,041,394
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Be - ERFOEREMEKIE I5 149 292
Derivative financial instruments TESBIE 6 — 392
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHER 17 2,195 58,181
2,070,693 2,100,259
Total assets EEHAE 2,070,701 2,100,267
EQUITY g
Share capital EEEN 18 1,433 1,433
Share premium MR ASH B 18 1,371,817 1,687,063
Reserves & 19 555,279 405,791
1,928,529 2,094,287
LIABILITIES &fE
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B Kk H th 1S 58 23 3,109 5,980
Amount due to a subsidiary FESHB B A B3k 3E 8 139,063 —
Total liabilities BELHE 142,172 5,980
Total equity and liabilities HEEREE 2,070,701 2,100,267
Net current assets REEEFE 1,928,521 2,094,279
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBER 1,928,529 2,094,287

Approved by the Board of Directors on 9 July 2010:

Wan Wai Loi
FER
Director

3

The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Bt 7% &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY For the year ended 31 March 2010
RERBBBR 822010538310 LFE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company
NG £r3 22PN Minority
Share Share Interests
capital premium Reserves Total $Y Total

RAx  REEE i A RREZR EDAR
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
et TR T TR TR TEL FEL
(Note 18) (Note 18) (Note 19)
(Mit18)  (Wi18)  (Wt19)

Balance at | April 2008 R2008%F 4 B 1 B2tk 1433 1,794,533 1,043,799 2,839,765 46,244 2,886,009
Comprehensive income: 2EHBA:

Profit for the year ERER — — 376,515 376,515 4091 380,606
Other comprehensive income: H2EWA

Currency translation differences EBHREER — — 36,253 36,253 — 36,253
Total comprehensive income dEMARE - = 412,768 412768 4_1,_(29I 416,859
Transactions with owners: HEEARS

Share-based compensation expenses {7 H % 18(c) — — 8891 8,891 — 8,891
2007/08 final dividend 2007/08 F AR & — (107,470) — (107,470) — (107,470)
2008/09 interim dividend 2008/09 F# Hfik & 30 — — (42,988) (42,988) — (42,988)
Total transactions with owners HEEARZEE — (107,470) (34097)  (141567) — (141,567)
Balance at 31 March 2009 20095 3 A 31 B2 &R 1433 1,687,063 1,422,470 3,110966 50335 3,161,301
Balance at | April 2009 R2009%F 4 B 1 B2tk 1,433 1,687,063 1,422,470 3,110,966 50,335 3,161,301
Comprehensive income: 2EHBA:

Profit for the year ERER - - 803,186 803,186 15,665 818,851
Other comprehensive income: H2EWA

Currency translation differences BHREER — — 6,765 6,765 (277) 6,488
Total comprehensive income dEMARE - = 809,951 809,951 I_§,_3_88 825,339
Transactions with owners: HEBARS

Share-based compensation expenses {7 HE % (1 18(c) — — 6,793 6,793 — 6,793
2008/09 final dividend 2008/09 F AR Hi% & 30 — — (171,952) (171,952) — (171,952)
2009/10 interim dividend 2009/10 FH HifE & 30 - —  (186,282)  (186,282) —  (186,282)
2009/10 special dividend 2009/10 F 5515 & 30 — (315,246) — (315,246) — (315,246)
Total transactions with owners HETARZER — (315,246) (351,441) (666,687) — (666,687)
Balance at 31 March 2010 R2010F3 A 31 B2ith 1,433 1,371,817 1,880,980 3,254,230 65,723 3,319,953
The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. FA5EN0EZMFEDEEMBHRERZHM o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS For the year ended 31 March 2010

SEBELHRER 8F2010F3A31ALEE

2010 2009
2010 2009 %
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ft &t FERT FHET

Cash flow from operating activities REXKHERE
Cash generated from operations REXBEEZRSE 3l(a) 955,225 905,365
Interest paid BARFA (3,833) (14,767)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREERER (41,043) (12,901)
Mainland China income tax paid B A B A A S B (45,810) (16,523)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEBELEZRL TR 864,539 861,174
Cash flow from investing activities RETBHZHAERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELRRE (240,645) (211,835)
Purchases of strutured deposits and bonds BEABUEGTRARES (324,568) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEW¥ « BE RREANEHIE 31(b) 17,147 4,033
Investments in associates EA%&%@ AZRE = (6,435)
Investments in jointly controlled entities HRE %\Jgﬁi‘fz&ﬁ (90,471) (20,141)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired Wﬁﬁf‘ﬁ% CHRelEFE 31(d) 2,384 —
Interest income received B2 UF /%\LBU\ 4,946 16,584
Dividend income received BEURSMA = 7
Net cash used in investing activities RETHHAZHEL TR (631,207) (217,787)
Net cash inflow before financing activities MEFHRRERAFE 233,332 643,387
Cash flow from financing activities BETH HERE
Repayment of a loan from a minority shareholder —%0 %(HX%ZTM EE (9,591) —
New borrowings MEEE 12,399 64,820
Repayment of borrowings EREE (297,764) (301,105)
Repayment of capital element of finance lease obligations 1@5\%@E§ﬁ%\7¥(§*2§$*ﬁ (810) (1,493)
Dividends paid B (673,480) (150,458)
Net cash used in financing activities METBHBAZELFEHE (969,246) (388,236)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEEBEE (BY) /HNFHE (735,914) 255,151
Cash, cash equivalents and R4R1BEE BeLSEEESE

bank overdrafts at | April RITEX 1,418,659 1,146,769
Foreign exchange adjustment IERETE 3,731 16,739
Cash, cash equivalents and MR3B31AEE - BELEEER

bank overdrafts at 31 March BHETEX 17 686,476 1,418,659

The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Financial Information
Bt 7% &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and trading of textile products. Its
production bases are primarily located in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC")
and Sri Lanka.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is PO. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of units of HK
dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 July 2010.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.
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Financial Information

BB ER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has adopted the following new and amended HKFRSs as of |
April 2009:

HKAS | (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements” (effective |
January 2009). The revised standard requires ‘non-owner changes in
equity’ to be presented separately from owner changes in equity in a
statement of comprehensive income. As a result the Group presents
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity all owner changes
in equity, whereas all non-owner changes in equity are presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Comparative
information has been re-presented so that it also is in conformity
with the revised standard. Since the change in accounting policy only
impacts presentation aspects, there is no impact on earnings per
share.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments — Disclosures”
(effective | January 2009). The amendment requires enhanced
disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. In
particular, the amendment requires disclosure of fair value
measurements by level of a fair value measurement hierarchy. As the
change in accounting policy only results in additional disclosures,
there is no impact on earnings per share.

HKFRS 8, “Operating Segments"” (effective | January 2009). HKFRS 8
replaces HKAS 14, “"Segment Reporting”, and aligns segment
reporting with the requirements of the US standard SFAS 131,
“Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information”. The new standard requires a ‘management approach’,
under which segment information is presented on the same basis as
that used for internal reporting purposes. This has not resulted in
significant change in the number of reportable segments presented by
the Group. The reportable segment remains the “manufacturing and
trading of textile products” segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 4R A& B EREM T (&)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EE&HHEME (£)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RHEEE(H)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued) EHBREREZEEY
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (Continued) (a) AEECHEMAZHITRETER
(%)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the MELEDH 2 BEEME
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker BEerFER ((EEES)
("CODM"). The CODM has been identified as the executive %‘J)Fﬂm E@W*K#&iﬁﬁ
directors that make strategic decisions. RAZELEEH—H- -8R

%&*é/?% RERBEDEERM
AHEEENHORE - AR
%ﬁlﬁ%%ﬂ’ﬁﬁjﬁfﬂ IRTE °

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that (b) M2009F4ENMEALEELEER
have become effective in 2009 but not relevant to the Group’s operations BZEARBRTEANBITERE
The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing WTRERMED - RTEANE
standards have been published and are mandatory for accounting periods A1 RERER2009F4 A1 B AR
beginning on or after | April 2009 but are not relevant to the Group's Eﬂ ﬁéZ@‘a‘f,ﬁﬂ fil 3 & 18 3R A
operations: Mo HEREEEERR

Effective for accounting REIRERAE
periods beginning on or after BheEHERLN

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs | Jaunary 2009 BReiEl REHE 20095 1A18

1%

HKAS 32 and HKAS | Puttable Financial Instruments and I Jaunary 2009 FReHEYN  TALEBIAR 00951518
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation ENFATR  BRANCEM

gHEHRIR
(1)
HKFRS | and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, I Jaunary 2009 BRUEGEEY  WEBOA EEMY  2009E151A
(Amendments) Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate ﬁﬁﬁ&é’é ERAhERA
gpEiEng  REAE
(i)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Share-based Payment | Jaunary 2009 é%,ﬁﬁ%f&%ﬁﬁw WRIBRA R 009£1 718
F15 57%)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 and ~ Reassessment of Period ending on or Bh (ERERRS W\ﬂfﬁlﬂ BN09E6A 3082
HKAS 39 Embedded Derivatives after 30 June 2009 ﬁ% z8g)- EHE B
(Amendments) i 9ﬁﬂ

a\%@m
2308 (BT7)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes | July 2008 FAERNERE EPAdHE 200857514
#EZEE)-
REER
HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction I January 2009 ER(ERMHE: RUERERE 0095 1A1H
of Real Estate #EZEE)-
2RR150
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a | October 2008 ER(ERMHEs BOMZE RAZR 06510718
Foreign Operation #EZEE)-
RS 108

HKFRSs First Annual Improvements Project | January 2009 BRMBAEEN  ARen WQW 2009171A
(Amendments) Published in October 2008 by HKICPA (%) 0085 10RER

éﬁtﬁﬁﬂ&%ﬁlﬁﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have been published and are mandatory for the Group's
accounting periods beginning on or after | April 2010 or later periods, but
the Group has not early adopted them:

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RERBHRERME (B)

2. EEEHBEBER (F)

2.1 RREE(E)

SNBRERE 2 (£)

(c) REMMAEEALERAFHN
FTEARBTEABTHERE
T ABEMAER - BTEAE
AIRRE MASEBEAER2010
FAAVBHNBRHE 2 2 R
HE B ERRG - EREETE

HKFRS | (Revised)
HKFRS |

(Amendment)
HKFRS 2

(Amendment)
HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HK(FRIC) - Int 14

(Amendment)

HK(FRIC) - Int 17

HK(FRIC) - Int 18

HK(FRIC) - It 19

HKFRSs
(Amendments)
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First-time Adoption of HKFRS

Additional Exemptions
for First-time Adopters

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

Related Party Disclosures
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
Classification of Right Issues
Eligible Hedged ftems
Business Combinations

Financial Instruments

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

Distributions of Non-cash
Assets to Owners

Transfers of Assets from Customers

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments

First Annual Improvements Project
Published in October 2008 and
Second Annual Improvements Project
Published in May 2009 by HKICPA

| July 2009

| January 2010

| January 2010
| January 201 |

I July 2009

| February 2010

| July 2009

[ July 2009

| January 2013

| January 2011

| uly 2009

| July 2009

[ July 2010

I July 2009
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Information

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

(©)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

Management is the process of making an assessment of the impact of these
standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards and is not
yet in a position to state whether they would have a significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

2.2 Consolidation

(@

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition
of subsidiaries by the Group.The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in
the consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company's balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses (Note 2.7). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions with minority interests

The Group treats transactions with minority interests as transactions with
equity holders of the Company. For purchases from minority interests, the
difference between any consolideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to minority interest are also recorded in
equity.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition,
net of any accumulated impairment loss. See Note 2.7 for the impairment
of non-financial assets.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in investments in associates are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associates are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d)

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture in which the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity which is subject to joint control and
none of the participating parties has unilateral control over the economic
activity. The Group's interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The Group's share of its jointly controlled entities’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the jointly controlled
entity, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its jointly
controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the jointly controlled entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of jointly controlled entities have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in investments in jointly controlled entities are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

In the Company's balance sheet the investments in jointly controlled entities
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of jointly
controlled entities are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the CODM. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar ("HK$"), which is
the Company’s functional currency and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss
and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such
as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale are
included in the available-for-sale reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate
component of other comprehensive income.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Financial Information
Bt 7% &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)  Group companies (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investment in foreign entities or operations, and of borrowings and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are
taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed
of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate.

Leasehold land and land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land and land use rights are
accounted for as operating leases. They are expensed in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the periods of the lease or the land use
rights, or when there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in the
consolidated income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress are calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 2% - 4%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Plant and machinery 10% - 20%

12.5% - 25%
20% - 25%

Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets' useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (Note 2.7).
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Financial Information
B 7% & &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machinery on which
construction work has not been completed. It is carried at cost which includes
construction expenditures and other direct costs less any impairment losses. On
completion, construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses. No
depreciation is provided for construction in progress until the asset is completed
and available for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are charged to the consolidated income statement.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled entities
and non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each balance sheet date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries or associates or jointly
controlled entities is required upon receiving dividends from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries or
associate or jointly controlled entities in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

Financial assets

2.8.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current
assets.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Financial Information
Bt 7% &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
2.8.1 Classification (Continued)
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(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payment that are not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date, which are classified as non-
current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise trade and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet
(Notes 2.12 and 2.13).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. Such an asset is included in non-current assets
unless investment matures or management intends to dispose of it
within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date-the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the income
statement within ‘other income and other (losses)/gains — net'in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in the income statement as part of
other income when the group’s right to receive payments is established.
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Financial Information
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign
currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the security. The translation
differences on monetary securities are recognised in profit or loss;
translation differences on non-monetary securities are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income statement as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
income statement as part of other income when the Group'’s right to
receive payments is established.

2.9 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The asset's carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Financial Information
Bt 7% &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

2.10

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit
rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. For equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in the separate consolidated
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the separate
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the separate consolidated income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted
for at fair value through profit and loss. Changes in the fair value of these derivate
instruments are recognised immediately in income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and
work-in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17

2.18

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company's subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and matemity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(if)  Retirement benefits
Group companies participate in various defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution plan is a retirement benefit scheme
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The schemes are generally funded through payments to insurance
companies or state/trustee-administered funds. The Group pays
contributions on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

. including any market performance conditions;

. excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when the options are exercised is
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium, net of any
directly attributable transaction costs.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the
employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution of the subsidiary. The fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Bonus plan
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obliation can be
made.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities.
Revenue is shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of
each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when an entity has delivered products to the
customer; the customer has accepted the products and collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

Advance payments received from customers prior to delivery of goods and
provision of services are recorded as receipts in advance.

(b)  Sub-contracting income
Sub-contracting income is recognised when service is rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition(Continued)

(©

221

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loan and receivables are recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the
assets for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

2.22 Leases (as the lessee)

(@)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of
property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease
payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so
as to achieve a constant rate on the finance lease balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
current and non-current borrowings. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23

2.24

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
[t can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company's shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Because of the
simplicity of the financial structure and current operations of the Group, no major
hedging activities other than the use of external forward foreign currency
contracts are undertaken by management. However, the forward foreign currency
contracts do not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for at fair value
through profit and loss.

(a)  Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the cash and bank
balances denominated in foreign currency. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The Group's transactions in Hong Kong are mainly settled in either
HK$ or US$ while the transactions in PRC are mainly settled in RMB,
therefore the foreign exchange risk is considered to be insignificant as
the HK$ is pegged against the USS$. In addition, the conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
the foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(0

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net
assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk. The Group
manages its foreign exchange risks by performing regular reviews,
using forward contracts and continuously monitoring its foreign
exchange exposure.

For the year ended 3| March 2010, for a bank balance denominated
in Canadian dollars (“CAD"), if CAD had strengthened/weakened by
10% (2009: strengthened/weakened by 10%) against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the year would
have been HK$ 157,000 (2009: HK$106,000) higher/lower.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for the structured deposits and bonds, cash at bank and
short-term bank deposits and borrowings, details of which are
disclosed in Notes|2, 17 and 20 respectively, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

Structured deposits and bonds, bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group manages its interest rate risk by performing regular review and
continually monitoring its interest rate exposures.The Group has not
used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, if the market interest rates for
structured deposits and bonds and bank deposits had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
net profit would have been approximately HK$1,881,000 (2009:
HK$2,058,000) higher/lower.

For the year ended 3| March 2010, if the market interest rates for
floating bank borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group'’s net profit would have
been approximately HK$925,000 (2009: HK$2,683,000) lower/higher.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from structured deposits and bonds, trade and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables, derivative financial instruments
and cash and bank balances.

At 31 March 2010 and 2009, substantially all the structured deposits and
bonds, cash and bank balances as detailed in Notes 12 and |7 are held in
major financial institutions located in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Sri Lanka
and Macau; all derivative financial instruments are also entered into with
these financial institutions, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has a policy to limit the amount of credit exposure to
any individual financial institution and management does not expect any
losses arising from non-performance by these financial institutions.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of their customers. The credit quality of the customers is
assessed based on its financial position, past experience and other factors.
Normally the Group does not require collateral from trade debtors. The
existing debtors have no significant defaults in the past. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and other receivables falls within
the recorded allowances and the directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables has been made.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been for additions of and
upgrades on property, plant and equipment, repayment of debts and
payment for purchases and operating expenses. The Group finances its
working capital requirements through a combination of funds generated
from its operations and bank borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure it maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
has available funding through adequate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet its working capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) %A B BREME (£)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBEREE (£
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEBEE (#)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HBELER (B
The table below analyses the Group's and the Company's financial liabilities TRAEAEENKARARNEER
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the k) ‘J HA B A R B T ) B 7
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed BEBAHN -REFEENS
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. %ﬁﬁé%"]’ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ{ﬁﬁ% °
() Group () AEHE
Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
1ER 15828 26ZE5F @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
At 31 March 2010 R2010%3A31H
Borrowings EE 75,268 882 — 76,150
Financial lease obligations AR ERE 83 — — 83
Trade and bills payables EBNEXRER 805,291 — — 805,291
Accruals and other payables  JEFTIE B R E b B 5UE 354,356 — — 354,356
Amount due to an associate  JE (B2 A A X 5,250 — — 5,250
Total 2i(E 1,240,248 882 — 1,241,130
At 31 March 2009 R2009F3 831H
Borrowings EE 284,258 60,068 60,309 404,635
Financial lease obligations BB G &L 657 232 — 889
Trade and bills payables ERNRZRER 551432 — — 551,432
Accruals and other payables  JEATIE B RE M T RIE 239,264 — — 239,264
Total 2i(E 1,075,611 60,300 60,309 1,196,220
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 4R A& B EREM T (&)
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BBEBER(H)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEBEZ (#)

(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued)
(i)  Group (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial instruments
which will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

(c) RBESER (&)

() A&EE#E)
TRATEBEERERRA
EANIMBORRHRE
NEBRERZENITESR
TENDH - RRPEES
TERANMATERER

g
Between Between 3
Less than | and  months and
| month 3 months | years  Over | year Total
SPR1EA 1Z2318 3BAEHF BE1EF @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR TR TR TR
At 31 March 2010 M201063A31H
Forward foreign currency EHINESH
contracts
Inflow mA 104,512 305,408 642,868 38,820 1,091,608
Outflow i (104,465) (304,448) (642,161) (38,693) (1,089,767)
At 31 March 2009 R200953A31H
Forward foreign currency EHINEES L
contracts
Inflow A 130,260 187,200 163,800 — 481,260
Outflow Yok (128,988) (185,617) (162,423) — (477,028)
(i)~ Company (i) A7
Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
TR 15228 26FE5F et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
At 31 March 2010 R201053A 318
Accruals and other payables  FEZTIE B R H 4 JE 508 3,109 — — 3,109
Amount due to a subsidiary ~ FETHIB A AR 139,063 — — 139,063
142,172 — — 142,172
At 31 March 2009 R2009%3A31H
Accruals and other payables  FERTIE B R E b JE 5B 5,980 — — 5980
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

3.3

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of
the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowing divided by total capital.
Total borrowings include current and non-current borrowings and finance lease
obligations as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. Total capital is calculated
as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. The gearing ratios at 31
March 2010 and 2009 were as follows:
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SHBERBRREN ZBEEE - MKRR
REET  FORRIHEEERE
E% -

HEMRAEMER  AEENEREER
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BERMINTHEERDEELERE
HERE BABEARAEERRER
Frol e (25 ] - B2010F 82200943 A

SIHZERBRELENT :
2010 2009
20106 20094
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Total borrowings EELHE 74,357 405,524
Total capital EREHE 3,319,953 3,161,301
Gearing ratio ERGELE 2% 13%

The decrease in the gearing ratio during the year ended 31 March 2010 was
mainly resulted from the repayment of a bank loan of HK$274,510,000 of the
Group.

Fair value estimation

Effective from | April 2009, the Group adopted the amendment to HKFRS 7 for
financial instruments that are measured in the balance sheet at fair value, this
requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Financial Information
Bt 7% &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

RERBBRERNE (B)

BEERERE (&)
3.3 ATEME(E)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are measured at TRETASEEENAERZ201063A31H
fair value at 31 March 2010. FEMNAREE -
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E E2E E3IE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE Fi Fi Fib7
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments TESBMIE
(Note 16) (KI5 16) — 4,961 — 4961
Available-for-sale financial assets I EERERE
(Note 11) (MtzE11)
— Equity securities RS 39 — — 39
— Club debentures ot 1t — 1,741 — 1,741
Total assets EEHRE 39 6,702 — 6,741
Liabilities &
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMTA
(Note 16) (Mtzx16) — (1312) — (1312)

4.  CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. These
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(@)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. These
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives; actual residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and
residual values and therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair values less cost to sell. These
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

E A i R A
REBELRLAMER  BEREABRT
RERAEZRESEEA - it RAIE
RRERE -

AEEFEHARBBR G RAE - Fih2E
AR ER R E D RIARERARAR -
BREEARBREHT —EMBRFEEERAE
FREEFEHEABE Z Gt RREHANT -

(a) #M¥ BERRBZIIRAFHRBRE
AEEEEEEENE BERREZ
st EAFES HERMEERTEX
H o B REEUEE ka2
£ BERRELERTERFHNR
FsREL - ERESNAEAFHD
RER G MATES S - FMEHK
MHCERREL 2 Rl ERERIER
BHEE - BEREEFHARARRG
AAAEREE  MERSETATES S
RIEFTERME © EEEH 2 1Ra 7 B8 R
AMEFHRRELRED  AMEN
ARFTERAXEE -

(b) W% BERRE HELHRIHE
RERE
nE BELRERE EELMRLHE
RENLRBRRELNDREG
EHFIMRE L ERAEERE - TR
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W EFH BT R A RAAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights
(Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment particularly in
assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate that the related
asset values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result
affect the Group's reported balance sheet and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future cash
flow projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the income
statement.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.

Provision for impairment of trade, bills and other receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for impairment of trade, bills
and other receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. This assessment is based on the credit history of its customers and
other debtors and the current market condition, and requires the use of
judgements and estimates. Management reassesses the provision at each balance
sheet date.

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerours jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The CODM has been identified collectively as the executive directors of the Company.
The executive directors review the Group's internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CODM has determined the operating
segments based on these reports.

The executive directors review the performance of the Group mainly from textile
manufacturing segment by geographic perspective. The operating segment represents
manufacturing of textile products in China, Sri Lanka, the associate in China and the

jointly controlled entities in Bangladesh. As all of the Group's business operations relate
to the manufacturing and trading of textile products with similar economic
characteristic, they are aggregately reported as one operating segment as disclosed in
these consolidated financial statements. The CODM also reviews the resources
allocation and performs performance assessment based on the entity-wide financial

information disclosed below.

Set out below is a summary of key performance indicators reviewed by the CODM on

a regular basis:

RERBBRERNE (B)

5.

A HEH

EREEAREDRARAADARITES ©
HTBSBHAKE I NH2K - LHERR
YARAR - BEEEERREDRELSRE

BEGEDH -

PTEENHEAERENAEELRRIR
RENBBERD - KE2DBRRNPE - B
BER  PENBEARRAMEARESNE
BRETMBER BRAEEZIBEBAR
BRUEERENRER EEM SR - A5
REEA—BALLELBERERGA M BR
k- BREERRENEN T AREERY
WABER  ERERDEMETRRFGE -

HREGEIRETHENARRARBEZLRE
M

2010 2009
2010F 20094
HK$000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Revenue WA 5,883,413 4734816
Gross profit eSSl 1,221,764 686,957
Gross profit margin (%) EHE (%) 20.8% 14.5%
EBITDA FE - BIE - TEREHEAER 1,269,692 688,572
EBITDA margin (%) FE B TEREHAST X (%) 21.6% 14.5%
Operating expenses mERX 319,858 320,430
Operating expenses /Revenue (%) mEmE /WA %) 5.4% 6.8%
Profit attributable to equity holders ARAERFAA
of the Company JE 16 803,186 376515
Net profit margin (%) R E (%) 13.7% 8.0%
Total assets EERHE 4,656,284 4,385,530
Equity attributable to equity holders RRAVERFAA
of the Company B 3,254,230 3,110,966
Inventories FE 1,173,632 761,640
Inventory days FEAY 76 79
Trade and bills receivables KRR RRIE 788,820 600,116
Trade and bills receivables days EREFREEAY 43 47
Trade and bills payables ERERRRE 805,291 551,432
Trade and bills payable days EREFARRERH 53 52
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group's sales by geographical locations are determined by the final destination

RERBHRERME (B)
5. ZHER (&

AEEREE D HETIAEMI ZRE

where the products are delivered: BEM S
2010 2009
2010F 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTET
China H 1,823,245 1,299,765
South East Asia R 1,215,817 996,850
Hong Kong a5 1,126,974 864,083
Sri Lanka HEHFK 1,048,882 909,719
Others Hit 668,495 664,399
5,883,413 4734816

Revenue of approximately HK$1,270,135,000 (2009: HK$590,429,000) are derived from
a single external customer.

The Group’s non-current assets (other than financial instruments and deferred tax

U A#71,270,135,0007 7T (2009%F : 590,429,000)

BREE—SKEF -

AEEZUEEN ZHRDEE (BT AR

assets) are located in the following geographical areas: BRBEEERMNOT
2010 2009
2010F 20094
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEL
China H 1,239,460 1,266,984
Hong Kong e 46,810 43,062
Sri Lanka 2R 213,064 240,147
Others Hity 102,366 20272
1,601,700 1,570,465
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 6.

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid operating
lease payments and their net book value is analysed as follows:

RERBBRERNE (B)

HETHRLiERE
AEEREE LR T RE B ATEN
REMOFR - BREFEDTAT :

2010 2009
2010F 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FTET
At | April ®n4A1H 27,931 28,336
Currency translation differences INEMEEE 21 367
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payment AN S ML IE 2 B (764) (772)
At 31 March M3 A31A 27,188 27931
2010 2009
2010 20095
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FET
In Hong Kong, held on: REBRE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years FHNFI10E50F 2L 3,598 3,694
In China, held on: RAERE :
Land use rights of between 10 to 50 years FEHNFI0E0F 2 L FEHARE 17,005 17,409
In Sri Lanka, held on: RETEMRHE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years FHNF10EL0F 2L 6,585 6,828
27,188 27,831
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) %A B BREME (£)
7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. W% -BER®RE
Leasehold Plant and  Furniture and Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles  In progress Total
BF HENEEE HERKZ HARRE RE  HEIE Fh

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At | April 2008 #2008 4818
Cost A 611232 7864 1715240 158,030 23277 186378 2,702,021
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (70,438) (6876) (985,631 (103546) (12943) — (1,179,434)
Net book amount RRFE 540,794 988 729,609 54,484 10334 186,378 1,522,567
Year ended 3| March 2009 HZ 200963731 ALEE
Opening net book amount FURETE 540,794 988 729,609 54484 10334 186,378 1,522,587
Currency translation differences ~ JMNEMREZTE 10,368 — 13,245 84| 68 2021 26,543
Additions NE - - 82,585 3047 1573 123430 211,835
Disposals & — — (1451 24) — — (1475)
Depreciation charge FEZH (24831) (988)  (211564) (19,467) (3448) — (260,298)
Transfers BR 56477 — 70,091 20,167 45 (147,186) —
Closing net book amount FHRERFE 582,808 — 682,515 59,048 9978 164,643 1499192
At 31 March 2009 R2009F3 A 318
Cost A 679,455 7864 1892502 183,119 25,565 l64643 2953148
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (96,647) (7864)  (1,209987) (123871 (15587) — (11453,956)
Net book amount FEFE 582,808 — 682,515 59,48 9978 164,643 149,192
Year ended 3| March 2010 HZ 201063731 HLEE
Opening net book amount FURETE 582,808 - 682515 59,248 9978 164643 1,499,192
Currency translation differences ~ JMEBE £ 5 1403 — 1036 (16) \ 278 2702
Additions AE -~ 38 146,844 10514 2465 92,465 252326
Disposals e (5.183) — (1016) (50) (1.900) — (8149)
Depreciation charge FEZ (28476) 4)  (48137) (21,303) (3590) — (301,510)
Transfers BR 181,948 — 26,139 7,097 — (215,184) —
Closing net book amount FREMEE 732,500 34 607,381 55490 6954 42202 1444 561
At 31 March 2010 #2003 8318
Cost A 854905 7900 2034313 200717 23594 49200 3163633
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (122,405) (7868)  (1426932) (145.227) (16,640) — (1,719,072)
Net book amount RERE 732,500 34 607,381 55,490 6954 42202 1444561
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 4R A& B EREM T (&)
7.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 7. W% -BERRE (B)
Depreciation expense recognised in the income statement is analysed as follows: R RRANERZ TERXAIMMT ¢
2010 2009
20106 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT
Cost of sales HEKA 295,419 253,767
General and administrative expenses —RETERAY 6,091 6,531
301,510 260,298

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment pledged to secure bank facilities
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$86,415,000 (2009: HK$92,913,000).

AEEERRAREMBEREZDE  BERHK
) BR 1B 4) 586,415,000 7T (20094 :

92,913,000 7T) °

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are analysed as follows: BEREROFE2ME  BEREES T
T

2010 2009
2010F 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER AT
Cost — capitalised finance leases KA-RERNBTER 4,922 4922
Less: accumulated depreciation o BEIE (3,428) (2,456)
Net book amount REFE 1,494 2,466
Depreciation charge for the year FRTELH 972 984

8. INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 8 RHEBARZREHEEYK () RE
SUBSIDIARIES

2010 2009

20105 2009F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FET

Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRRG - BAAK 8 8

Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) W B RIZE () 2,068,349 2,041,394

Amount due to a subsidiary (Note) ERIBARZRE (BE) 139,063 —

Note:

The amounts due from /(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

At

B/ ((HBAAFNAREER - R BRALERME

8o
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RERBHRERME (B)
RWBRARAZREEEY /() KB

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM /(TO) SUBSIDIARIES 8.

(Continued) (&)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2010 and 2009: AT RIR 20105 82009F3A31H 2 X &
MERA
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Equity interest

establishment/ share capital/ attributable Principal
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital to the Group activities
MEARER 3LV BRITRAEEZ AEEERL TEEK
B A/ EMER AR
2010 2009
2010 2009%F
Shares held directly:
HEREARS
Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$ | 100% 100% Investment holding
EBELEHE 18T A
Pacific Textiles Overseas Holdings Ltd.  British Virgin Islands HKS$ | 100% 100% Investment holding
KBRS 18T WA
Pacific HK & China Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$ | 100% 100% Investment holding
EBREULES 18T REER
Pacific SPM Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$ | 100% 100% Investment holding
EBELEHE 18T A
Solid Ally International Ltd. British Virgin Islands HKS$ | 100% 100% Investment holding
KBRS 18T WA
Lehan Resources Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$ | 100% 100% Investment holding
EBREULES 18T REER
Fast Right Group Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$1,000 100% 100% Investment holding
EREERRRAA RERIHS 1,000% 7T REER
Goodscore Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$ | 100% 100% Investment holding
=SEER AR RBRZHE E WA
Shares held indirectly:
BEEERSD
Fillattice-Pacific Limited Hong Kong HK$3,900,000 100% 50% Inactive
ENAERRA Bk 3,900,000 7 TER
Pacific Textiles Limited Hong Kong HK$ 103,000,000 100% 100% Trading of
BERHBARRT e 103,000,0007 7T textile products
Pacific SPM Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$ 100% 100% Investment holding
BERABGEHREERAT BE 18T BEER
Pacific (Nansha) Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$22,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
ERM@ABRERRAA N 22,000,000/ 75 REER
Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao Macau MOP1,030,000 100% 100% Trading of
Commercial Offshore Limited il 1,030,000 2 9 & textile products
BRBINGRPIBEE R HEmE

RBARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8.

INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM /(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2010 and 2009:

RERBBRERNE (B)
8. MHMEBARZREREW (M) XE
(%)

AT RIIR2010F #2009F3A31HZ £ 2

(Continued) MEAR : (8)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Equity interest
establishment/ share capital/ attributable Principal
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital to the Group activities
MERREE i A BRITRMEZ FEBEMS TEEK
EfEE RAE/ZERER IR AR &
2010 2009
20105 20094
Shares held indirectly: (Continued)
MEEERG  (£)
Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Mainland China Registered/ 100% 100% Manufacturing
Limited (Note) A B A paid up capital and trading
EXR (BB)5 802 US$72,699,989 of textile products
BR QA BRIV $eli & mEmRERES
72,699,989% 7T
Pacific/Textured United Kingdom GBP100 100% 100% Fabrics agency
Jersey Ltd. HE 100 & MR
Textured Jersey Lanka Sri Lanka Rs1,597,229,000 60% 60% Manufacturing
(Private) Limited IESGERS 1,597,229,000 and trading of
HPEREM textile products
mEmRERES
Note: fif &

Company established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in Mainland China.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN

FHARFRATEAMKINZENERE -

9. REBELARZEZRENRE

ASSOCIATE
2010 2009
2010 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Share of net assets (Note (a)) EEEEEE (K@) 27,752 23,201
Amount due to an associate (Note (b)) FERE S D RIFIE (FiED) 5,250 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(a)  Share of net assets
Movements of share of net assets of associates are as follows:

RERBHRERME (B)

9. REERARAZEBERECKE (F)

(a) EHEEEFRE

FEhBERRBEFEZEDNT -

2010 2009

2010 20094

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER TET

At | April m4A1H 23,201 15,086

Currency translation differences N E =T 74 257

Capital injection (Note) TE (D) — 6,435

Share of results - profit for the year FEIE 548 — F RN 6,706 1423

Disposal & (2,229) —

At 31 March R3A31H 27,752 23201
Note: fizt:

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group injected capital of HK$6,435,000 in SPM
Automotive Textile Co., Ltd..

EHZE2009F3A31HIESFE - ASEEHETIE
K (BMN) RE 4 BERBRAR)EEE435,000

BT
The Group's share of results, assets and liabilities, all of which are unlisted, are as AEERGFELMORZEE  AEH
follows: BEWT :

2010 2009
20106 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Total assets EEHAE 40,890 34,822
Total liabilities aEAE 13,138 11,621
Revenue WA 57,751 38,047
Profit for the year FEm A 6,706 1,423
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(b) Amount due to an associate
The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest free, repayable on demand
and denominated in RMB.

The particulars of the associates as at 31 March 2010 and 2009 are set out as follows:

RERBBRERNE (B)
9. REENRzEZEENRE (&

(b) ENBEIFARER
BNBERRFEREAR 28 A
REKEERAARKEHE -

M2010F % 2009F3A31HE & N A 2B

Place of
Incorporation/

Issued and
fully paid

M

Equity interest

establishment/ up share capital/ attributable Principal
Name of associates operation registered capital to the Group activities
BENREH AL A CRITRAEZ FEBEY TERER
BiRi R R EMHE A R A HE £
2010 2009
20104 20096
Fillattice-Pacific Limited (Note (i) Hong Kong HK$3,900,000 — 50% Trading of textile
BEhBARAR (M) N 3,900,000 7T products
BEHMM
SPM Automotive Textile Mainland China US$7,500,000 33% 33% Manufacturing and
Co., Ltd. (Note (ii)) B s 7,500,000 % 7T trading of vehicles
FEIER (BM) REHE related textile
ERERAR (M i) products
SEREENENAM
i m
Notes: ftzt:

(i) On 18 May 2009, the Group acquired the remaining 50% equity interest in Fillattice-Pacific Ltd.
which became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group (note 31(d)).

(i) Company established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in Mainland China.

(i 200958180 * AEEWEE HHR R A H%
TE0%EEMA AR EE2EMH BA A (M

31(d)) °

(i)  ZARAREFENERIOZ2ENERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) %A B BREME (£)

10. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 10. ATHEZGIER ER

2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Share of net assets (Note (a)) BIEEEFE (MiEa) 24,452 20,141
Cash contributed to a jointly controlled EFAZEGIERRSER
entity (Note (b)) (B E (b)) 77,747 —
102,199 20,141
(@)  Share of net assets (a) EEEERE
Movement of share of net assets of jointly controlled entities are as follows: AERFERGAREHEREEFE
ZBENT
2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
At | April m4H1H 20,141 —
Capital injection (Note) AE (M) 12,724 20,141
Share of loss PMEBE (8,413) —
At 31 March M3HA31THE 24,452 20,141
Note: Hist:
During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group injected capital of HK$12,724,000 (2009: REZE2010F3A3THILEE - REEHCPAT
HK$20,141,000) in CPAT (Singapore) Private Ltd. (Sngapore)Private Ltd.J* & 12,724,000 7T
(2009% : 20,141,000,7T) °
The Group’s share of results, assets and liabilities, all of which are unlisted, are as REBEGRIELFTARZES  BER
follows: BREOAT
2010 2009
2010%F 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Total assets BEHBEAE 104,906 20,141
Total liabilities RERTHE 80,454 —
Revenue WA = —
Loss for the year FEFE (8,413) —
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RERBHRERME (8)

10. THEZRHEE2ER (B
HEZHBEREASER
EHAER2010F3A31H IEFE HRE
HIERRSEBEEZN210F58%
A BEREHEERA -

A 2010% K 2009F 3831 B HARHIEBRE Y

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)
(b) Cash contribted to a jointly controlled entity (b)
Balance represents cash contributed to a jointly controlled entity during the year
ended 31 March 2010 and was subsequently capitalised as the share capital of the
jointly controlled entity in May 2010.

The particulars of the jointly controlled entities as at 31 March 2010 and 2009 are set

out as follows:

Place of
Incorporation/

Issued and
fully paid

HEHIDT

Equity interest

Name of jointly establishment/ up share capital/ attributable Principal
controlled entities operation registered capital to the Group activities
HEZHERER iy My ERTREBEZ EEEL TEER
B2 B FRER [N
2010 2009
20104 20094
Amigo Bangladesh Ltd. Bangladesh Taka390,000,000 42.33% — Maunfacturing and
IR AN 390,000,000 %+ and trading of
textile and
garment products
BEREEH R
B E o
Ananta Knitwear Ltd. Bangladesh Taka 10,000,000 42.33% — Investment holding
EibvE: Tl 10,000,000 & REER
CPAT (Singapore) Private Ltd. Singapore paid up capital 42.33% 42.33% Investment holding
I US$100,000 KA
100,000 T
HRBRA
Elegance Pacific Trading Limited British Virgin Islands US$ | 42.33% 42.33% Trading of
EXR=mNBESBRAT HBRLES = textile and
garment products
Ever Smart Bangladesh Ltd. Bangladesh Takal90,000,000 42.33% — Maunfacturing and
N AN 190,000,000 3%+ and trading of
textile and
garment products
R BB
XK
Fortune Joy International Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$100 51% 51% Investment holding
BMEEERAA RERZHE 1003 REZER
King Jumbo Investment Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$5,030,000 51% 51% Investment holding
ERERHE 5,030,000 T REZRR
Kingston Bangladesh Ltd. Bangladesh Taka390,000,000 42.33% — Investment holding
R A E 390,000,0008& BEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) %A B BREME (£)
I. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 1. IRHESREE
2010 2009
2010%F 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TET
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong ERELEMREEES 39 19
Club debentures SRES 1,741 1,741
1,780 1,760
At | April n4aR1H 1,760 1,808
Reversal/(Charge) of impairment loss W ExRZ
in the income statement MEBERE (X)) 20 (48)
At 31 March R3A31H 1,780 1,760
Market value of listed securities RS mSE 39 19

The fair values of listed equity securities and club debentures are based on quoted or
available market prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

2. STRUCTURED DEPOSITS AND BONDS

LTREESREREFZATFEDREMR
HAEAMEETE °

AR ESBEAENBTIME -
12. BRUERRES

2010 2009
20106 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Non-current: JERNER -
Structured deposits BREMEER 76,319 —
Bonds &% 53,982 —
130,301 —

Current: BNER :

Structured deposits BREMETR 116,589 —
Bonds &% 77,678 —
194,267 —
Total structured deposits and bonds EBEFAREFESR 324,568 —

These structured deposits and bonds are issued by various banks (“issuer”) and are not
insured or guaranteed by any governmental agency or deposit protection schemes.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to general credit risk of the issuer (Note 3.1(b)).

These investments are principal protected by the issuer, interest bearing at variable
floating rates and have maturity dates from 2010 to 2012.

2009 / 2010 Annual Report &3k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 4R A& B EREM T (&)
13. INVENTORIES 13. ¥

2010 2009
2010 2009 F
HK$000 HK$'000
THT THT
Raw materials JR AT} 852,734 501,778
Work-in-progress R 145,368 111,629
Finished goods Bk 135,050 103,451
Consumables SHAE M 40,480 44,782
1,173,632 761,640

The cost of raw materials and consumables used recognised as expense and included in
cost of sales during the year amounted to HK$4,098,582,000 (2009: HK$3,605,9 1 1,000).

Inventories pledged as security for the banking facilities available to the Group
amounted to approximately HK$77,639,000 (2009: HK$78,000,000).

AEEERARY Tt ABERAZREME
£ FE R JE FB AR 9 Bl A4,098,582,0007% 7T
(20094 : 3,605,911,0005 7T) °

AEEMERTREAGLERZFRENAR
77,639,000/ 7T ( 2009 % : 78,000,000

) °

14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 14. EWRRREE

2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Trade receivables FEUER R 576,687 480,956
Bills receivables W EE 234,920 134,046
811,607 615,002

Less: provision for impairment of W AR R
trade receivables B R (22,787) (14,886)
788,820 600,116

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables approximate their fair values.

EUESEREE 2 RHERRATERS -

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30 to 60 days. At 31 March
2010 and 2009, the ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on goods

delivered date, is as follows:

AEBRBHBEEZEEHN TI0E60K °
A20105 82009F 38310 » BT RE

BZREREERRNTBAB/ANET :

2010 2009

20105 2009F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FHT

0 - 60 days 0-60X 626,575 510,147
61 — 120 days 61-120K 168,724 91,444
Over 120 days i@ 120 K 16,308 13411
811,607 615,002
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

[4. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills receivables were denominated in

RERBHRERME (B)
4. BURRRRE (8)

AEERUEFEREZRREZUTEET

the following currencies: &
2010 2009
2010F 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FTET
HKS BT 362,333 279,840
RMB ARE 56,504 36,184
Uss$ e 392,518 298,731
Others Hit 252 247
811,607 615,002
As at 31 March 2010, trade receivables of HK$119,575,000 (2009:HK$144,021,000) R2010F3A31H + B EVE I MR E 2 EUER
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of customers for whom there o B 119,575,000 T ( 20094
is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as 144,021,000/ 7T) 85 T % P £ & W 5
follows: BBl - ZZRUEF2RRATNOT
2010 2009
20105 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Past due by: [EFk:ii
0 - 60 days 0—60XK 96,468 133,203
61 - 120 days 61— 120K 13,480 10,582
Over 120 days iR 120 K 9,627 236
119,575 144,021

As at 31 March 2010, trade receivables of HK$22,787,000 (2009: HK$14,886,000) were
impaired and provided for. The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to
customers, which are in unexpectedly difficult economic situations. The ageing analysis of
these trade receivables is as follows:

R2010F3A31 8 » BREREE 2 ERER
/522,787,000 7T (20094 : 14,886,000/

o

Jt)

ZERWEFRETEP (RREAR

RRHCREREZEP) AR - 2 TR

RZERITMT -
2010 2009
20106 2009%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET

Past due by: B -

0 - 60 days 0— 60K = —
61 - 120 days 61— 120K 7,764 7431
Over 120 days BB 120K 15,023 7,455
22,787 14,886
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 4R A& B EREM T (&)

I4. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 4. BURRRRE (&

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables is as follows: HESEEREDRERE 2 ZEBHMT
2010 2009
2010%F 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT
At | April Wn4A1H 14,886 9,987
Provision for impairment of trade receivables JE U BR FUR B BB 7,901 9,039

Receivables written off during the year as BHFAREERDERK

uncollectible — (4,140)
At 31 March M3 H31HA 22,787 14,886

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in
distribution and selling expenses in the income statement (Note 25). Amounts charged
to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each
class of receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as

HO R ARG ENRY R RE D AKE
K2 A RHERX A (M E26) - stARE
B ZFAERATRBMEEN RS ZERT
—REME -

REBERY  FAEERBRA LS RAIEK
R PREE - AEEYES A EERMIE

security. ER e
I5. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15. B¢  BARERAEtERTE
Group Company
REE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
2010 £ 2009 2010 & 2009 £
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHx FET
Rental, utility and other deposits Me - ARAR%
LEMIES 5,375 449 — —
Prepayments TA IR 19,608 8,593 149 245
Other tax recoverable H Ay U B 7 78 40,085 8,241 — —
Other receivables H {th fE Y R IE 1,422 1,006 = 47
66,490 18,289 149 292

2009 / 2010 Annual Report E_ib’z

—

85



86

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Financial Information
B 7% & &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I5. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables are denominated in the following

RERBHRERME (B)
16. 8% EARERAGERNE (&

B BNZAREMERGRE TR

currencies: E:
Company
NG|

2010 2009 2010 2009
2010 2009 4 2010 & 2009 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR FET TR FET
HK$ BT 6,540 1,563 149 292
RMB AR 54,505 6,023 — —
US$ E 3,951 6,739 — —
Others Hih 1,494 3,964 — —
66,490 18,289 149 292

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other receivables approximate their

fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the
receivable balances mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as

e BNFRARECEEREZREAEER
FERE -

RBERY  SAEERRA L BRFUALS
HREE - AREYESAEAERREL

security. R o
16. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TESRMIA
Company
N
2010 2009 2010 2009
2010 2009 4 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET
Current: BIE
Forward foreign currency EEINEE R
contracts — held for trading —HiEE=E
~ Assets —EE 4,961 1,596 — 392
— Liabilities —BfE (1,240) 6 — —
Non-current: FERNEY -
Forward foreign currency BRHINEESH
contracts — held for trading —RBEEE
— Liabilities —BE (72) — — —

The notional principal amounts of the Group’s outstanding forward foreign currency
contracts at the balance sheet date are HK$907,641,700 (2009: HK$158,000,000).

The notional principal amounts of the Company's outstanding forward foreign currency
contracts at the balance sheet date are nil (2009: HK$38,500,000).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying value of

the derivative assets in the balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 4R A& B EREM T (&)
17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 17. BERBITEH
Group Company
rEE RAT
2010 2009 2010 2009
2010 & 2009 4F 2010 & 2009 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET TER FHET
Cash at bank and in hand ROEFRERS 637,665 1,019,974 2,195 796
Short-term bank deposits RHRITIER 51,718 411,690 — 57,385
689,383 1,431,664 2,195 58,181
Maximum exposure to credit risk BEAEERR 688,988 1430977 2,195 58,181

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include the following for the purposes of the

Ae ReFEVERTEIREARINE

consolidated statement of cash flows: RBFEUTIER -
Group Company
S 3 AN
2010 2009 2010 2009
2010 2009 2010 & 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THET THET THET
Cash and bank balances R RIRITER 689,383 1,431,664 2,195 58,181
Bank overdrafts (Note 20) $17EX (M 20) (2,907) (13,005) = —
686,476 1,418,659 2,195 58,181
The effective interest rate and maturities of short-term bank deposits are as follows: REMBRTERERMEEIBANT
Group Company
& AN
2010 2009 2010 2009
2010 & 2009 2010 2009 F
Effective interest rate YIRS 1.71% 2.7% — 2.5%
Maturities Elpil= 1-90days [-120days — [-90days
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  #&RA MW EM T (&)
17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued) 17. RERBTHER (B)
Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies: ReRRITHEBRRUTE®ETIE -
Group Company
A&EE b WA
2010 2009 2010 2009
2010 F 2009 F 2010 & 2009 F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
HK$ BT 313,109 950,737 1,500 796
RMB AR 151,024 102,250 608 57,385
Us$ e 223,164 335,061 87
Japanese Yen H 89 2 —
Others HAh 1,997 43614 —
689,383 1,431,664 2,195 58,181

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB are deposited with banks
in Mainland China. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the Mainland China

AEENARBIEZRENRSEEN T
IR E A2 R1T - ABZEAREIES
BRRINE LA R B 52 o B At S SR B F e
AT B 2 SMEE SRR RARTE

Government.
18. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 18. RAERAFEE
(a)  Share capital (a) K&
Nominal value
of shares
HK$’000
BB EE
TER
Authorised: ETE
5,000,000,000 shares of FRAHEE0.001 BT
HK$0.001 each 5,000,000,000 A& 15 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
432,936,000 shares of FRAHEE0.001 BT
HK$0.001 each 1,432,936,000 f& {3 1,433
(b)  Share premium (b) RAEEE

In accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Continued)
(c)  Share option scheme
The Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by the shareholders of the
Company on 27 April 2007. On 9 July 2007, the Board of Directors approved to
grant options to 88 eligible full-time employees on 18 July 2007 to subscribe for a
total of 22,820,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$5.04 per
share with vesting periods of 3 years. The options are exercisable from 18 July
2010 to 17 July 2017 (both days inclusive), and shall expire on 18 July 2017,

Movements in the above share options are as follows:

GAPEBRRME (B)
18. BRAERARE (&)

(c)

BREE

BT EIE 7 2007F4 A27HER AR E
HEE AR - 522007F 7898 EZRALE
20074675 18E AB8LA B2 BEEBR
HEERE - ATRTT R EERL.04BTREAD
A4 ££22,820,000 810 - RBHAEZF -
BIER R 2010F7 B18B E2017F7A17H
(BEEEMAERN)TE - TR2017F7A
188 @i °

FRERE 2BMT -

Number of

share options

BREHA

Balance at | April 2008 2008 F4 A | BZ#h 22,230,000
Forfeited 2 (1,440,000)
Balance at 3| March 2009 M2009 F£3 A3 Bzisk 20,790,000
Balance at | April 2009 2009 F 4 A | BZE 20,790,000
Forfeited Rl (1,380,000)
Balance at 3| March 2010 R2010FE3 A3 Bzt 19,410,000

The fair value of the share options granted on |8 July 2007 was determined using
the Binomial valuation model. The fair value determined was approximately
HK$27,755,000 of which approximately HK$6,793,000 was recognised in the
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2010 (2008: HK$8,891,000). The
significant inputs into the valuation model are as follows:

Share price at the date of grant RELE B ZRHER
Annual risk-free interest rate 2 B 4 )

Expected option life TEHARE IR A R
Expected volatility TEHE R 18

Expected dividend yield AR B &

Expected employee exit rate FEHEERAE

R2007F 7B 18 B R L BEIRERIE —BH#
TEEARTEATE ERAFEDNA
27,755,000/ 7T & * 4)/456,793,0007 ;LR
HE2010F3A3NB L EFEREZRNER
(20097 : 8,891,000/ L) - BAZEANE
Z2EmT

HK$4.8
4.8%

6 years
32%
4%
['19%
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[9. RESERVES

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) %A B BREME (£)
19.
Group (a) AKH
Foreign
currency Share-
translation based
Capital Legal ~Statutory  reserve reserve Other  Retained
reserve  reserve  reserve SMERE  MRHA  reserve  earnings Total
ERfE RERE Eeff fie HERE HbRE RBER @zt
(Note(i)) ~ (Note(ii)  (Note(iii)) (Note(iv))
(BFEEG)  (Baain) (B & i) (B &)
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$000  HKF000  HK$000  HKFO000
TEL  TEx  TErn TR TER  TER  TET  TEx
At | April 2008 R2008F 4R 1R 1,000 500 55305 165,262 6,533 (3559) 818758 1,043,799
Profit attributable to equity holders A FIEZEE A
of the Company FEfE &R — — - — — — 376515 376515
Curemcy translation differences WNEREER — — — 36,253 — — — 36,253
Share-based compensation expenses B3 B & 3 — — — — 8,891 — — 8,891
2008/09 interim dividend 2008/09 F H & — — — — - —  (42988)  (42988)
At 31 March 2009 #2009 3A 310 1,000 500 55305 201,515 15424 (3559) 1152285 1422470
Representing: KR
Proposed final dividend BEABRE 171952
Others ity 980333
[,152,285
At | April 2009 200954518 1,000 500 55305 201515 15,424 (3,559) 1,152,285 1,422,470
Profit attributable to equity holders AR FIEZEE A
of the Company JE{G % — — — — - — 803,186 803,186
Curemcy translation differences NEBREZS — — — 6,765 — — — 6,765
Share-based compensation expenses B 13 B & 3 - — - - 6,793 - - 6,793
2008/09 final dividend 2008/09 A Hif & - - — - — —  (171,952)  (171,952)
2009/10 interim dividend 2009/10 F HfE & - - — — — —  (186,282) (186,282)
At 31 March 2010 R201053A 318 1,000 500 55,305 208,280 02207 (3,559) 1,597,237 1,880,980
Representing: KR
Proposed final dividend BERBRS 243,599
Others ity 1,353,638
1,597,237
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. RESERVES (Continued)

GENBHERME (£
19. % (&)

Company (b) ZAAT
Share-based
reserve Retained
LU 13 B earnings Total
HERE REEF Agt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

At | April 2008 M2008F4A1H 6,533 81,176 87,709

Profit for the year F 2 5 — 352,179 352,179

Share-based compensation expenses B A Bl & 3% 1} 8,891 — 8,891

2008/09 interim dividend 2008/09 # Hifk 2. — (42,988) (42,988)

At 31 March 2009 2009 %3 A31H 15,424 390,367 405,791

Representing: O

Proposed final dividend BEAERE 171952

Others Hith 218415

390,367

At | April 2009 R2009F4A818 15,424 390,367 405,791

Profit for the year FE R — 500,929 500,929

Share-based compensation expenses BB & 2 6,793 — 6,793

2008/09 final dividend 2008/09 & Hifk 2. — (171,952) (171,952)

2009/10 interim dividend 2009/10 R EAfR & — (186,282) (186,282)

At 31 March 2010 R2010%3A31R 22217 533,062 555,279

Representing; B

Proposed final dividend BEABRE 243,599

Others EAh 289,463

533,062

Notes: [zt

(i) Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares of (i) EXRREERIBIE2004F11 A2 BEMK
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a reorganisation in November 2004 over the nominal BHEARARGzEERAAR ML E
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof. TR ABBLZE -

(i) Inaccordance with relevant Macao Commercial Code, the subsidiary incorporated in Macau, (i)  BEEHERMEER  RRMFMKL
Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao Commercial Offshore Limited, is required to set aside a ZHBRAENEIINGERMB AR
minimum of 25% of its profit after taxation to legal reserve until the balance of this reserve REERAAASEGRRE T ZD
reaches a level equivalent to 50% of its capital. As at 31 March 2005, the appropriation to WEANREREE  EERHEEESRE
legal reserve of the subsidiary has reached 50% of its capital. ZHERERAL0%ALE - R2005F3

A31E - BIBZZMBRARAEREL
SREDEARAS0%

(i) As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s subsidiary established and (i)  RPBEAMERAMRT  ARRRE
operated in Mainland China is required to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit R REEZHBRARERIO% R
(after offsetting prior year losses) to statutory reserve at a rate of 10%. The statutory HE-FoB B M EEEFEER
reserve is non-distributable. B EBRTEERE - ATEREBTIMRD

K °
(iv)  Other reserves represent the difference between any consideration paid to acquire (iv) EftEEERm—5 0 BRENE M

additional interest in a subsidiary from a minority shareholder and the relevant carrying
value of net assets acquired.

BRBZEIMERE X2 ERRESR
REBRREZAERAECZRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) %A B BREME (£)

20. BORROWINGS 20. &8
Borrowings are analysed as follows: EEATOT
2010 2009
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Bank and other borrowings (Note (a)) RITREMEE (@) 74,278 404,635
Finance lease obligations (Note (b)) MEHEAE (MEb) 79 889
74,357 405,524
(a) Bank and other borrowings (a) BITREMEE
2010 2009
2010F 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TEL
Non-current: FEENER
Long-term bank loans - secured RORTER-FEMA 848 1,828
Long-term bank loans - unsecured RERITER - J|ER — 59,320
Loan from a minority shareholder (Note) —ZOHRRERER (M) = 59,229
848 120,377
Current: BIEg -
Current portion of long-term REBITERNEL S
bank loans - secured —BHEE 753 10,628
Current portion of long-term RERITERNEL D
bank loans - unsecured — IR = 215,190
Trust receipts loans - secured ERRBEER - EHA 20,132 45435
Bank overdrafts - secured RITHE Y — HIKIR 2,907 13,005
Loan from a minority shareholder (Note) —HIEREREESR (M) 49,638 —
73,430 284,258
Total borrowings EELE 74,278 404,635
Note:  The loan from a minority shareholder is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. Mzt — 2L ERERBEFASEER 28

RARERERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(@)

Bank and other borrowings (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following

RERBBRERNE (B)

20. f8& (&)
(a) BAIREMES(E)
7 EEE T T S5 -

currencies:

2010 2009
20105 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
HK$ BT — 274510
US$ E 69,843 127,549
Sri Lankan Rupee (“LKR") HMERRERL ([E)) 4,435 2576
74,278 404,635

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows: REEBERFENT

2010 2009

20105 20094

HK$ Us$ LKR HK$ US$ LKR
BT T B BT i EL
Bank overdrafts FITE S — 4.0% 22.0% 5.5% 7.3% 24.0%
Bank loans RITERN — — 8.5% 27% 4.7% 8.5%

The carrying amounts of all bank and other borrowings approximate their fair
values as the impact of discounting is not significant.

The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

ARERZFETK  WRARITRE
tiEEZREESEAAFERE

EEZEBMAMT

2010 2009

2010%F 2009%

HK$°000 HK$'000

TET FET

Wholly repayable within 5 years AR B FNEHER 74,278 404,635
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BEEZEFMAET

2010 2009

20105 2009

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTHER FET

Within | year 15ER 73,430 284,258

Between | and 2 years 12245 848 60,068

Between 2 and 5 years 254 — 60,309

74,278 404,635

Property, plant and equipment of HK$86,415,000 (2009: HK$92,913,000) and
inventories of HK$77,639,000 (2009: HK$78,000,000) of the Group (Note 7 and
I3) are pledged as securities for the secured bank borrowings of HK$24,640,000
(2009: HK$70,896,000) and the banking facilities of the Group.

AEEME - BE &iZE86,415,000%
7T (20094 : 92,913,000/ 7T) 7 &
77,639,000 7T (20094 : 78,000,000
#Ir) (MEE7813) BEAREB A K
451718 & 24,640,000 7T (20094 :
70,896,000/ 7r) IR E B 2 K4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(b)  Finance lease obligations

RERBHRERME (B)

20. 168 (&)
(b) WEHEEEE

At 31 March 2010, the Group had obligations under finance leases repayable as R201063A310 - ARENRANEE
follows: FERETMAT
2010 2009
20105 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Finance lease obligations - minimum BMEREAE - &K
lease payments: HEFA :
— Not later than | year — TR F 83 718
— Later than | year and not later than 5 years — 1 F{&BT BB 5 F — 246
83 964
Future finance charges of finance leases BMEHEHEMBH 4) (75)
Present value of finance lease obligations MEREAERE 79 889
2010 2009
2010%F 20096
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
The present value of finance lease MEMEAZZREWT
obligations is as follows:
— Not later than | year — TR F 79 657
— Later than | year and not later than 5 years — 1 F{&{ET BB 5 F — 232
79 889

Finance lease obligations are denominated in RMB.

21. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

MELERETDAARBIIE -

21. EEFEH

ETHABEREEHBRABINTMT

2010 2009
20106 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHT
Deferred tax assets: RERIEEE ¢
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — BB 12 AR E Y E
after more than 12 months IERFBIBEE 4,950 —
Deferred tax liabilities: EERBEEE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered — BB 12EARTH
after more than 12 months ZEERBAE (16,751) (4,825)
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) EENiEaE (OFE) (11,801) (4,825)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The gross movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows:

RERBBRERNE (B)

21. EEMEH (&
BEHEHER 2 EBRENT

2010 2009

20106 20094

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR THET

At | April Wn4A1H (4,825) 3,467
Currency translation differences SR E =R (40) (36)
Charged to the income statement (Note 28) Mgz F i (FiEE 28) (6,936) (8,256)
At 31 March M3IA3TH (11,801) (4,825)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

REEBERA R AEEROFERLTH
REERBBEZ2BEHRDT

BEREEE :

Accelerated tax  Provisions for
depreciation  doubtful debts
allowance and staff benefits

&R E R Total

FERE BINZERE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEL FEL FEL

At | April 2008 H2009%E 481 R — 5,360 5,360

Credited/(charged) to the income statement KUz R &, () 100 (2,700) (2,600)

At 31 March 2009 M2009F 3831 H 100 2,660 2,760

Credited to the income statement Rl HRER 70 2,120 2,190

At 31 March 2010 R2010F3A31H 170 4,780 4,950
Deferred tax liabilities: EERESE :

Accelerated tax Undistributed

depreciation profits of

allowance Subsidiaries
B E HEAE Total
nERRE ROEEF Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At | April 2008 MH2009F 4818 (220) (1,673) (1,893)
Currency translation differences SNEIME EZ T — (36) (36)
Credited/(charged) to the income statement RU R &,/ () 220 (5,876) (5,656)
At 31 March 2009 M2009F 3 A 31 A — (7,585) (7,585)
Currency translation differences SNEME Z T — (40) (40)
Charged to the income statement N EE S — (9,126) (9,126)
At 31 March 2010 M2010F3 8310 — (16,751) (16,751)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) %A B BREME (£)
22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 22. BRERRREE
2010 2009
2010%F 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHRT THT
Trade payables FEfTER X 536,549 417,852
Bills payables NS 268,742 133,580
805,291 551,432

ENERRREZRAEEEQFERS -
BT 2EES RN FI0E60K °
ENERRREZREITOT :

Trade and bills payables approximate their fair values.
The credit period granted by the creditors generally ranges from 30 to 60 days.

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables is as follows:

96

2010 2009
2010% 2009F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TET
0 — 60 days 0-60X 605,209 453,747
61 — 120 days 61-120K 187,429 89916
Over 120 days i 120 K 12,653 7,769
805,291 551,432

Trade and bills payables are denominated in the following currencies: ERNERRZEATIEEHE -
2010 2009
20106 2009FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
HK$ BT 103,650 97,785
RMB AR 79,258 81,261
Uss$ e 622,383 366,432
Others Hity — 5954
805,291 551,432
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 4R A& B EREM T (&)

23. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

23. EFEEREMESRE

Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
2010 F 2009 F 2010 & 2009 F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAERT FET TERT FET
Accruals for other operating expenses Hib2 @RS 2 EFTIERB 159,731 84,739 3,077 5973
Accruals for property, plant ME - BERRE
and equipment [EETIEE 53,121 41,440 — —
Provision for staff welfare ETRFEBER
and other related costs H b §H B3 AL 46,474 65,995 — —
Provision for customer claims REREEE 30,762 24,642 — —
Provision for bonus TS 25,000 9,631 — —
Others HAh 39,268 12,817 32 7
354,356 239,264 3,109 5,980
Accruals and other payables are denominated in the following currencies: JEETIE B R E MR I THIEHat
&:
Group Company
rEE RAT
2010 2009 2010 2009
2010 & 2009 2010 2009 F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET TERT FET
HKS BT 89,660 54,112 3,109 5,980
RMB AR 232,773 159,153 — —
Us$ ETT 31,745 25,706 — —
Others Hth 178 293 — —
354,356 239,264 3,109 5,980
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24.

25.

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET

RERBHRERME (B)

24, EtWAREM (BB) ks - F

2010 2009
2010%F 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TETL
Other income: HA -
Sub-contracting income SBEA 9,600 13,681
Sale of residual materials & Fsr v Et 26,866 24521
Dividend income from listed investments FARERERA = 7
Sundry income B A 31,577 20,316
68,043 58,525
Other (losses)/gains — net: (BB) Mas—3%
Derivative financial instruments /ﬂii BMITHE
— forward foreign currency contracts —REINEE A
held for trading BIEER 8,608 (4,545)
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains INE (B5E) e FE (9,432) 5572
(824) 1,027
67,219 59,552
EXPENSES BY NATURE 25. BMEASNEX
2010 2009
2010%F 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Depreciation charge of property, plant and equipment 1% ~ BifE & T & X
(Note 7) (M5E7) 301,510 260,298
Amortisation expense of leasehold land HET R e R EEERAS
and land use rights (Note 6) GETD) 764 772
Cost of raw materials and consumables used JR LB 2 B R AR R
(Note 13) (MHEx13) 4,098,582 3605911
Provision for impairment of trade receivables MR FUR B R 7,901 9,039
(Note 14) (Hizx 14)
Werite-off of bad and doubtful debts R B 5 — 51
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ EEBMXE (BEESHE)
emoluments) (Note 26) (H¥3E 26) 388,530 333,439
Operating lease payments in respect of land T REFLE
and buildings HHF 2 4,176 5,475
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE  FERREZNEG
(Note 31(b)) (KI5 31(b) (8,998) (2,558)
Reversal of provision for slow-moving BHERRERE
and obsolete inventories B2 BE (6,359) (21,963)
Auditor's remuneration REE & 2,326 2,400
Other expenses Hihf 193,075 175,325
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling HERA - DHKHEE
expenses and general and administrative expenses fl sz B — AR R 1T 2 48 3 4,981,507 4,368,289
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

RERBBRERNE (B)
26. BERAXH (BREEH D)

EMOLUMENTSY)
2010 2009
2010 2009%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances - A §=—1: 377,972 325,730
Termination benefit REBRBEEER 437 1,410
Retirement benefit — defined contribution RKER — EREMER
schemes (Note (a)) =& (BisE(a)) 3,223 (2,933)
Staff welfare and benefits BTRA &A= 105 341
Share-based compensation expenses % 19 Bl & 52 6,793 8,891
388,530 333,439

Retirement benefit — defined contribution schemes

The Company's subsidiary in Mainland China is a member of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the Government of Mainland China. The
Group contributes a certain percentage of the basic salaries of the subsidiary’s
employees, and has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or
post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-managed
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the
retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees'
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group's and the employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per
month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The Group has arranged for its Sri Lanka employees to join the Employees’
Provident Fund (“EPF") and Employees’ Trust Fund (“ETF"). Under these defined
contribution plans, the Group contributes 2% and 3% of the employees’ monthly
gross emoluments to the EPF and ETF, respectively.

(a)

RAERN - EERREH

ARARPEZHER R AT ENLK
RETEREREARENTEZK
8- AEEZMBARREEAT S
TRALERER - MRFEHR
VEERIMERSIBEBEN2E—
FEME - BRERZRAFEEEMR
REEXNHAAERKE -

AEEDRHEBFEREESMABHED
Baate ([REest ) - %8 AR
BUXFEAEE AR’ - BER
BEEHE AEEREEBREHM
AEEHIIERZEEUAZ%EAR
Mt L HR - AREREEH#KY
N A10008TALR  BRIFHZ
HRBERLE -

AEEELRHENER REELNES
PEEHE ([AFEEE]) REEET
BEe ((BEERTER]) - BEZSER
H"HEE - AEBLREEESAMS
BEZ12%R3%AAEETELES
ERESHA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) %A B BREME (£)

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’  26. EERAXL (BRESEM ) (&)
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) EZ=EMe
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 March 2010 is set out below: BZE2010F3A3NBIEFE - RES2HemT
Employer’s

contribution  Share-based
to retirement compensation

Discertionary schemes expenses
Fees Salaries bonuses  EIRETEZ RA#ME Total
ok é ML EEXEE X @

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TERT TERT

Ip Ping Im ST — — — — — -
Choi Kin Chung g — — — — — —
Wan Wai Loi FEKX 1,500 2,790 5,786 12 — 10,088
Tsang Kang Po LH R 1,000 2,900 4,099 12 — 8,011
Lam Wing Tak MmeiE 1,000 2,900 4317 12 — 8,229
Lam King Man U590 1,000 1,730 2,701 12 — 5,443
Lam Hing Chau, Leon (appointed B (7 2009 F
on 21 September 2009) 9A 21 HEZA) 583 820 480 7 148 2,038
Ho Hsiang Ming, James B R (R 2009 F
(resigned on 28 August 2009) 8 A 28 HE# ) - - - - — -
LauYiu Tong Rz - - - - - —
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael B 150 — — — — 150
Ng Ching Wah g 150 - - - - 150
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel JiEiEs 150 - - - - 150
5,533 11,140 17,383 55 148 34,259
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 March 2009 is set out below: BZE2009F3ANBILEFE - KES2HemT
Employer's
contribution to
retirement
Discertionary schemes
Fees Salaries bonuses RINGHEIZ Total
fiken e HBTEAL BEHT #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
Ip Ping Im Bt - -~ _ -
Choi Kin Chung ge 4o — — — —
Wan Wai Loi FER 1,500 2,790 2,076 12 6,378
Tsang Kang Po =R 1,000 2,900 1,474 12 5,386
Lam Wing Tak M 1,000 2,900 2,029 12 5941
Lam King Man MEX 1,000 1,730 1,403 12 4,145
Ho Hsiang Ming, James BRX — — — —
LauYiu Tong ZRE — — — —
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRAA 150 — — 150
Ng Ching Wah hEE 150 — — 150
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel Jits B & 150 — — — 150
4,950 10,320 6,982 48 22,300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26.

27.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(c)  Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the
year include 5 directors (2009: 4 directors), whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. For the year ended 31 March 2009, the emoluments
payable to the remaining one individual were as follows:

RERBBRERNE (B)
26. BERAXH (BREEHSE) (B

(c) HEEBRHEAL
FEERAFERRHEALAANEE
FREE (2009F ( 4RESF)  HE 2
e R ES 2T ki - B Z20094F 3
ASNHLEFE  BABTI1BALZH

0T

2010 2009
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET

Basic salaries, housing allowance and EX%e FERAER
other allowances H fih )28 = 2,134
Discretionary bouses BB IEAT — 600

Retirement benefit - defined contribution BIREN—EHE

schemes G & — 12
Share-based compensation expenses % 19 Bl & 52 — 253
— 2,999

The number of non-directors with emoluments within the following band:

FEEALZHMEENTBEOAL :

2010 2009
20104 2009%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHT
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 /%7 — 3,000,000 % 7T — |
FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 27. BBBARKE
2010 2009
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Finance income: b ONE
- Bank interest income —RITFBHA 4,946 16,584
Finance costs: BRI
- Bank loans and overdrafts —RTERREY 3,508 14,550
- Finance lease obligations - RMEHEAE 325 217
3,833 14,767
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2009:16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year

The subsidiary established and operated in Mainland China was subject to enterprise
income tax at the rate of 12%, after a 50% reduction in accordance with the applicable
tax regulations, for the year ended 31 March 2007. On 16 March 2007, the National
People’s Congress approved the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the "new CIT Law"). The new CIT Law standardises the corporate income tax
rate to 25% with effect from | January 2008. However, the subsidiary continues to enjoy
a 50% reduction in the corporate income tax rate in respect of certain portion of its
taxable profit up to 31 December 2009 in accordance with the applicable tax
regulations as a result of additional capital injections made in prior years to the
subsidiary.

The subsidiary established and operated in Sri Lanka, Textured Jersey Lanka (Private)
Limited, is exempted from income tax on its profits for a period of 12 years from the
first year of commencement of commercial operations in September 2001.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement represents:

RERBRERME (&

28. FIBHEX
EENEHIREBEFEAGTEEF SR
16.5% (20094 : 16.5%) {EH 4 o

REBE2007F3A31BLEFE @ st R50% &
e RPBERIREE 2B LRIAR
2% EBMEEMGH © B2007F3816
B 2BARRERRZEB(PEARKENE
PEREBRE) (BIEEMERE]) - 52008
FIRA1BR  FEEMGRESCENEH
F—H25% ° AT - RBEBABEEG
MARATEFEIMIERHBAR - ZHBATF
AR ERHF BEEESERS0%E %
PSR 22009128318 »
RETEBRR Y REE 2B A7 Textured
Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited5 2001497
BEABEEEEEEERA;12FH  BHR
REBMBARET -

RERRBERIBRZAERS

2010 2009
2010%F 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHEL

Current income tax BIER TS 1
- Hong Kong profits tax —BAENEH 94,660 29,858
- Mainland China income tax (Note) —HERAER (i) 48,084 10,599
Deferred tax (Note 21) BEFRE (FIsE 21) 6,936 8,256
149,680 48,713

Note: Included in the Mainland China income tax was approximately HK$ 1,946,000 tax refund received in
July 2009 in accordance with the applicable tax regulations as a result of acquisition of PRC
manufactured machinery. For the year ended 3| March 2009, tax refund of approximately
HK$ 16,111,000 was received in accordance with the applicable tax regulations as a result of
acquisition of PRC manufactured machinery and additional capital injections made in prior years to
the subsidiary in Mainland China.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

RERBBRERNE (B)
28. FAEHAX (&)

BAKBRRAASH AR 2 IR RIZERNE
ARERENZMETOREFEZEREHEL

consolidated entities as follows: EZEMT
2010 2009
2010%F 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
Profit before income tax TS H RS 7 968,531 429,319
Tax calculated at weight average domestic RERANEBERZ
tax rate applicable to profits in the T T REAEL
respective countries 1B 138,904 41,078
Income not subject to tax BERT R (1,274) (1,499)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TAHMBAX 2,924 3272
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable REBRHE AR 5 KE M 8
profits of the Group's subsidiaries B E 9,126 5,876
Others Hith — (14)
149,680 48,713
The weighted average domestic applicable tax rate was: MEFETEAREMT
2010 2009
2010%F 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
Weighted average domestic applicable DN 5 1 75 i
tax rate Ly 14.3% 9.6%
29. EARNINGS PER SHARE 29. BRER
(a) Basic (a) EXK

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares in issue

BRERBMEARAERSEARS

i R R F A B BT RO 0T 9 8

during the year. A
2010 2009
20106 20095
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit attributable to equity holders of AREERFAA
the Company JE A% A 803,186 376,515
Weighted average number of shares BT N
in issue (thousands) THE (FR) 1,432,936 1432936
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) BREXEZF (BRBT) 0.56 0.26
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted
Diluted earings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number
of shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential shares. The
Company has one category of dilutive potential shares, which is share options.

As the exercise price of the share options granted by the Company was higher
than the average market price of the Company's shares for the year ended 31
March 2010, those outstanding share options granted which amounted to
19,410,000 shares as at 31 March 2010 (2009: 20,790,000 shares) have no dilutive
effect on earnings per share and diluted earnings per share is therefore the same
as basic eamnings per share.

BEMBRERMEE (B
29. BRER (&)
(b) #H

BREFENIEBEREFREG 2N
BEHBE BB A REEERD
HE - AAREEEHEERD - I
BARE -

ARARRREZBREZTEERR
HBE201063A310 I EERARRN
7 HE - R2010E3A31AE BT
BERMATEZBEREZHE B
19,410,000/ & 5 (2009 &
20,790,000 MR f&)) + ¥ S & FI &
BEYE HABREERFEAZREXR
BFES -

30. DIVIDENDS 30. ®RE
2010 2009
20106 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAER TR
Interim dividend paid of HK 13 cents BIRAEE 1Mz PERE 186,282 42,988
(2009: HK 3 cents) (Note(i)) (20094 : B¥E3M) (M)
Special dividend paid of HK 22 cents BIRTE 221l 2 5 AR S
(2009: Nil) (Note (ii)) (20094 : &) (fi&E (i) 315,246 —
Proposed final dividend of HK 17 cents BORMBEE 172 RERE
(2009: HK12 cents) (Note (iii)) (2009 F « ##& 1240L) (B Gii)) 243,599 171952
745,127 214940

Notes:

(i) On 7 December 2009, the Board of Directors of the Company declared an interim dividend of HK
I3 cents per share, totalling HK$186,282,000 for the six months ended 30 September 2009. The
amount was paid on 8 January 2010.

(ii) On 22 January 2010, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a special dividend of HK 22
cents per share, totaling HK$315,246,000 paid to the then equity holders of the Company. The
amount was paid on 25 February 2010.

(i)~ On 9 July 2010, the Board of Directors of the Company proposed a final dividend of HK 17 cents
per share for the year ended 31 March 2010. This proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend
payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings
for the year ending 31 March 201 1.
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(ii)

(iii)

M2009F12R7H  ARAIEERERME
2009F9A30R LA EATHREERERKS
i+ A ££186,282,0008 7T - ZEHKED R
201051 A8A Y ff ¢

20101 A228 - ARAIEFRERFAIKRE
SREE 221l - A££315,246,0008 T T EEE
ARREERHBA - ZERIEER2010F2825
A% -

M2010F7A90  ARBEZREZREZ
2010F3A3BILFERGA RS GRAEE 17
o BERABRESERZENBERE ERMAE
B - BEREE2011E3A31ALEE 2R
BEMz AP RY -
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS RERERERME
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REXBFELERS
2010 2009
2010%F 2009%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER AT
Profit before income tax P15 %0 A1 968,531 429319
Adjustment for: AN BHEZHE
Share of profit of associates FEAGE & R Al A (6,706) (1,423)
Share of loss of jointed controlled entities FE(R LRI G E B A1 8,413 —
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB RR
equipment BiITE 301,510 260,298
Amortisation of leasehold land and HE TR
land use rights & RS 764 772
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWME  BERREZ
and equipment B (8,998) (2,558)
Interest income A BUWA (4,946) (16,584)
Interest expense FlEHRX 3,833 14,767
Share-based compensation expenses 1 B 2 32 6,793 8,891
Dividend income e B U & = @)
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ AHLESREEY
Impairment loss on available-for-sale (REEBERR) /
financial assets HEEE (20 48
Unrealised gains on exchange difference (BN ZBEAREE Wa — (7,248)
Operating profit before working HEELEBAL
capital changes mE RN 1,269,174 686,275
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories FE (Ggm) Rd (411,992) 231,645
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and G E S
bills receivables (g R (188,690) 8,592
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits, B BRFEREAM
prepayments and other receivables fEMeRIE (8m) Rd (48,201) 17,101
(Increase)/Decrease in derivative MESRIARTE
financial instruments (&m) Ed (2,114) 1595
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and R EZREEEMm/
bills payables R 253,859 (59,589)
Decrease in trust receipts loans EE{W%E%\?}&Q\ (25,303) (12,082)
Increase in accruals and other payables fEETIE A &ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂﬁ%u 103,242 17,472
Increase in amount due to an associate FEHH%%Q FRIEIE N 5,250 —
Cash generated from operations REEBMEERS 955,225 905,365
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Financial Information
B 7% & &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) %A B BREME (£)

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  31. B4BeRERHE (£

(Continued)
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of (b) E@f«%%ﬁ/ﬁiﬁiﬁw CHENE - BE
property, plant and equipment comprise: RBRFEHRERERE
2010 2009
2010%F 2009%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET
Net book amount (Note 7) REFE (MF7) 8,149 1,475
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BERREZ
and equipment (Note 25) Bam (PH3E 25) 8,998 2,558
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE  BERZE
plant and equipment P15 5008 17,147 4,033
(c) Significant non-cash transactions (c) fij@iﬁiﬁﬁ% o
At 31 March 2010, the amount of approximately HK$53,121,000 (2009: 5/3%010353)% 318 - HBEMR @%
HK$41,440,000) in respect of purchase of property, plant and equipment has =6 CIE R %’U\SSL]Z],OOO;% 7t
been provided for. (20094 : 41,440,000/ L)
(d) Acquisition of a subsidiary (d) l\lﬂﬁl‘ﬁﬁ’/}ﬂ ‘
On 18 May 2009, Solid Ally International Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the 5/3200.9¢5H 188 - ZF/AET%/QEW%Q
Company, acquired the remaining 50% equity interest in Fillattice-Pacific Ltd at a EjSohd Ally InTerEat'Onal Ltd. ABRE
cash consideration of approximately HK$2,229,000. Consequently, the Group's 1&@2,225&0\907%%”@%EﬁE@’A\ET
equity interest in Fillattice-Pacific Ltd was increased from 50% to 100%. %TW%EE c Bt ARERENE
D AIEIE MAB0%ZE100% ©
Details of net assets acquired as as follows: WREEFEFBNOT
HK$'000
TET
Purchase consideration BERE
— Cash paid -2f8Re 2,229
The assets and liabilities as of 18 May 2009 arising from the acquisition are as 720096518 MKBMELCEERB AN
follows: T
Acquiree’s
Fair value carrying amount
ATE KBANEEHESHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAEL
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 4613 4613
Other receivables H At 8 W AR R 14 14
Other payables H it FERTER X (169) (169)
4,458 4,458
Total purchase consideration (50%) BEREBEGI%) 2,229
Purchase consideration settled in cash EEREBEUREIN 2,229
Cash and cash equivalents of the subsidiary acquired WHEMTBARIRE LR EED (4613)
Cash inflow on acquisition of the subsidiary WEHRBARRERA (2,384)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

32.

33.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2010, the Group and the Company had no material contingent liabilities
(2009: Nil).

COMMITMENTS

(@)

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date committed but not yet incurred is
as follows:

GEMBRERMEE (B

32. ZEEME
R2010F3A31H + AEEEANRWES K
S A8 E(2009F : &) o

33. BERERE

(a)

EXREE
REEARERAREEZBEAR N
T

2010 2009
2010%F 20094
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET
Contracted but not provided for: BEIAEREE -
Property, plant and equipment WE - BE LR 58,528 97396

As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, the Group had authorised the injection of capital
into an associate to be established in Mainland China with an independent third
party totalling approximately RMB21,880,000 to sell surplus steam generated by
the Group to potential users in the vicinity.

As at 31 March 2010, the Group did not have any significant share of capital
commitments of its associate and jointly controlled entities (2009: Nil).

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had total financial commitments in respect of
equity capital and shareholders’ loans to be injected into jointly controlled entities
of HK$ 152,820,337 (2009: HK$243,999,000).

Operating lease commitments
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases of land and buildings, as follows:

(b)

20105 82009F3F318 * AEER
AR —REBIE = HEEMBERE
BRI BERA TEALRY
21,880,000\ B# » IR AEEFTE
EZBBERTHOEEERSE -

M2010F3A31H » ANEE BN A H
HEEH BRI EEKE ARE (2009
F ) o

M2010%63 8318 » AEBARZHE
B2 B R 858 5152,820,337%
T MBRAESEEARRETICTE H
[l ¥ %) E 8 (20094 : 243,999,000/
JT) °

BEENEE
ARERBELHRETZAUHELE
BORKRZERETELBENT

2010 2009

2010%F 2009%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER AT

Not later than | year TEBiE 1 F 593 1515
Later than | year and not later than 5 years BE1FETBABALT 380 283
973 1,798
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence.

The Company has no immediate or ultimate controlling party.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@)

RERBHRERME (B)

34.

AREALRS
WEM—T BN ERIMEEN ST &

HR—TTZHBREER

EEAFEN

BIEATHRRBME - MEMEALRH
AEHRAREATE  AITREAEHEE -

ARELEERRREERAL
HEBRBEALTHETZRSOT

Sale of goods (a) #HEEm
2010 2009
2010%F 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHI
A minority shareholder and its related —BVBRREREERE
parties (Note (i) AL (HEEEG) 280,834 276,900
A related party (Note (i) —ZBEEAT (HFE) 5,721 13,607
286,555 290,507
Goods are sold at prices mutually agreed by both parties in the ordinary course EmDNEREBRIERRETHTE LB
of business. BEHE -
Management charges (b) EEEHR
2010 2009
2010%F 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
A minority shareholder and its related —BVBRREREERE
parties (Note (i)) AL (HIEEG) 28| 281

Management charges paid to a minority shareholder and its related parties are
charged at a monthly rate of US$3,000 (2009: US$3,000).

YRGB —BPEREREEHEEALZ
EREERRNEA3000ETEYH
(20094 : 3,000FE7T) °

Sub-contracting charges (c) 2BEAR
2010 2009
2010F 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
A minority shareholder and its related —HLEREREE B
parties (Note (i) AL (HEEG) 16,756 6,435

Sub-contracting charges paid to a minority shareholder and its related parties are
charged at prices mutually agreed by both parties in the ordinary course of
business.

2009 / 2010 Annual Report &3k
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Financial Information
Bt 7% &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 4R A& B EREM T (&)
34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 3. BEREALRS (B)
(d) Rental income (d) HEWA
2010 2009
2010%F 2009%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
An associate ik /N 6,836 3,831
Rental income received from an associate is charged at an average RMB 502,000 BZ2010F3831HLFE  MBEEA
per month for the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: RMB 282,000 per month). AR & YA R A58 A502,000
AR ¥EHE (2009 : & A282,000A
R#&) -
(e) Year-end balances (included in trade receivables and trade payables) arising (e) R#EER BEEHEIGEBERELZE
from sale of goods, management and subcontracting charges: &R e (IR R B IR
2010 2009
20106 2009%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Receivables from related parties FEWABEALRIA
A minority shareholder and its —HLYRRREBEE
related parties (Note (i) AL (HFEG) 29,945 28,924
A related party (Note (i) BREALT (&) 232 2,053
30,177 30977
Payables to related parties ERABEALREA
A minority shareholder and —RLHRR
its related parties (Note (i) REBEANLT (M) 36 281
(f)  Key management compensation (i FEEBEAEME
2010 2009
2010% 2009%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Wages, salaries, bonus and allownances I& %4 fEaREE 35,364 25,198
Retirement benefits - defined BREN—EHE
contribution schemes HRETE 60 64
Share-based compensation expenses % 17 Bl & 52 253 253
35,677 25515
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(g) Amounts due from/ (to) subsidiareis
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiareis are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand.

Notes:

i randix Lanka Limited is a minority shareholder, wit| 6 equity interest, of Textured Jersey Lanka
i Brandix Lanka Limited i harehold h 40% equi f T d ) Lank:
(Private) Limited. Its related parties include its subsidiaries and its associates.

(ii) Companies controlled by Mr. Henry Choi Wing Kong, son of Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a director of the
Company, is a related party of the Company.

35. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of approximately HK$500,929,000 (2009:
HK$352,179,000).

36. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
On 24 May 2010, the Group further subscribed 10,786,500 shares in a jointly controlled
entity, CPAT (Singapore) Private Ltd., at a total consideration of US$10,786,500 of
which US$9,947,550 was advanced to this jointly controlled entity during the year
ended 31 March 2010 as stated in Note 10. As a result, the equity interest held by the
Group has increased from 42.33% to 44.83%.
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RERBHRERME (B)
3. EREALRZ (B)

35.

36.

(o) EY/ () KWEARKE
i/ (F) B A RFEAEER £
BRAZBREER

(i) Brandix Lanka Limited % Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) LimitedZ VEBE - HAEH
Q0% ARz c EEHEALTBELRZNE
DRREEEAR -

(i)  BARAEFERDEEZRFREN L AR
ZRAIRARAIEBEAL -

BEEEARERR
ARREEFEAREENRH B REARL
500,929,000 7t (20094 : 352,179,000%
7 °

BEMBREE

R2010F58240 » AEBE— S RELRET
#|'E 8 CPAT (Singapore) Private Ltd.Z
10,786,5000% 17 + & £ 2010534310 [FF
B - AKTsE 108 AR ELE /10,786,500
JC 0 B 9,947 6503 L A R IEH B RETE A
FIE - At NEEFEEERLNA42.33%
Z44.83% o
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Financial Summary

B ME
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS GEEE
Year ended 31 March,
HZE3A3IALEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
20105 20094 20084 20074 20064
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FEL FET FiEL
Revenue KA 5,883,413 4734816 4,280,646 4203357 3,363,029
Gross profit EF 1,211,764 686,957 696,887 922,091 802,256
Profit attributable to: THIA TGRSR :
Equity holders of the Company ~ RN AIEZRFHE A 803,186 376,515 392,093 555,698 458,855
Minority interests DR R = 15,665 4,091 4721 7,948 10,495
818,85I 380,606 396,814 563,646 469,350
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GEREEARX
As at 3| March,
W3A3IA
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
20105 20094 20084 20074 20064
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FEL FET FEL
Non-current assets FERBEE 1,738,731 1,572,225 1571284 1,237,790 956,292
Current assets MEVEE 2,917,553 2,813,305 2,831,677 1,803,121 1398436
Total assets BERAR 4,656,284 4,385,530 4,402,961 3,04091 1 2,354,728
Current liabilities mEAE 1,318,660 1,098,795 1,122,394 1,132,831 797,514
Total assets less current liabilities B EAERTHEE 3,337,624 3,286,735 3,280,567 1,908,080 1,557,214
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 17,671 125,434 394,558 416,587 469,918
Total equity R 3,319,953 3,161,301 2,886,009 1,491,493 1,087,296
Net current assets MEEEFE 1,598,893 1714510 1,709,283 670,290 600,922
Equity attributable to: T AT EIEER
Equity holders of the Company ~ RN AIEZRFHE A 3,254,230 3,110,966 2,839,765 1,440,745 1,044,496
Minority interests DR R = 65,723 50,335 46,244 50,748 42,800
3,319,953 3,161,301 2,886,009 1,491,493 1,087,296

2009 /2010 Annual Report 3§~ 1711

—



Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Glossary
HERAR

In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Information), RAERAN (B 28 amE B BE RN - B
unless the context otherwise requires, the following expression shall have the following EXEZEME THAZEFUTESE

meanings:
2010 Financial Year”  For the year ended 31 March 2010 [2010F T RFE] HE2010F3A31HILEEE
"AGM” Annual general meeting of the Company RRBFERE] ARAZBREBERE
“Articles” The Articles of Association of the Company, as amended from time to [S124051) ARAPKET 2 AAERE
time 2485
"Board” The board of Directors of the Company EE351 ARAIZEZR
“Brandix” Brandix Lanka Limited, a company with limited liability and [Brandix/ Brandix Lanka Limited + — &
incorporated in Sri Lanka EHERRERRLZERR
al
"CG Code” The Code on Corporate Governance Practices [ EEa<r il CEERERTE
“Company” Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated [RRF]] EXGBERAERAR - —FH
in Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed RASHEFMRLZZHE
on the Stock Exchange BARAR - HROPERATE
il
"Directors” The director(s) of the Company [EZ] ARAIZES
“Group” The Company and its subsidiaries [REE] ADAREMBAR
“INED” The independent non-executive Directors [(BUERTESE] ARANBLERTES
“Listing” Listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on 18 May 2007 [ 7] RARRMDH20076F5H18H
PRBE BT BT
“Listing Rules” The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange [ Em# Al B FE S ERA
“Model Code” Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (3=l FTHARERETERIIHN
EETR
"Prospectus” The prospectus of the Company dated 7 May 2007 el ERid RATIR2007F5 A7H 218
BER
“PT Sri Lanka” Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited, a limited liability company [PTHT 25 Textured Jersey Lanka
incorporated under the laws of Sri Lanka (Private) Limited *+ — iR &
HMERREREMKIZER
NS
“SFO" The Securities and Futures Ordinance [BARRBEED] EFErRHAEEN
“Shares” Shares issued by the Company, with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each [RRAIRR ] ARAIAETEREE0.001
BTzl
“Share Option The share option scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to the [FE IR =T 81 BEARDAIRRR 20074644
Scheme” written resolutions of the Shareholders of the Company passed on 27 27HBBZEMRERIAER
April 2007 Rz Bt 2l
“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. [ 56 22 P | BEEMEXHMERRA
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